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| Turnover im 6,303 5544
Qperating profic Lm 496 y

| Profit before taxanon m k]1)] 125

% Profit after taxation Lm 286 178

‘ Capiral and reserves Lm 1,427 1214
Earnungs per share

| Basic P 31.3 234
Fully ditired ? 28.7 214

‘ Dividends per share T P 11.10 116

'RAFFIC
Revenue tonne kilometres m 11,336 10,313
Available tonne kilometres m 16,913 15,424
Passengers carried 000 30,595 28,100
Cargo carnied (ronnes) 000 607 532
Overall load factor (scheduled serviges) % 66.5 66,2

,

MPLOYEES AND PRODUCTIVITY

“ Average number of employses 49,628 48,960
Revenve tonne kilomerres per employee 000 228.4 2104
Avalable tonne kilometres per employee 260 340.8 350

+ Earnings per sharc and diwidends per share for the yuar euded 31 March 1993 have boen adyusted 1 talae into sscount the bonns element of the ryghis s

ennounced it May 1993,
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

S

Iam pleased to repore anather successfial year for your Company:
According to 1ATA, the industry associaton, 1993 was another
vear of appalling resules with losses for snternanonal scheduled
services totalling 10 excess of USS4 bilhon for the second
consecutive year. During the course of the year two special
cormnusians were appointed to Lok snto the future of the
wndustry. The first was set up by Piesident Chinton to ook at

the prospects for US airlines, and the other was established by

the European Union Commissioner for Transport, and known as
the "Comuté des Sages”, to review the suanen in Europe, [ put
forward your Company’s views to hoth commue-ions emphasising
the imporunce of removing the obstacles to taffic and mvestment
access across borders at the earhest epportunities. | was encouraged
by the reports and recommendations subitied by each of the
commussions but reman disappointed at the lack of decisions and
consequent action by those in authority.

In contrast, your Company achieved a significant improvement in
profit over the previous year, Qur success was due o mameining

a relatively high load factor, despite an increase in awailable capacity
of 10 per went; and to concentraung on rasing productivity, this
year by 8 per cent. Operating profits increased in all four of our
main world regions and this success was especially notewarthy
Europe and the Americas. Cargo made its best ever contribution
to our Group results, while carrying a record 607,006 tornes.

W saw a good improvement in the performance of Briush Awrways
Regional, responsible for our operations based 1n Birmingham,
Manchester and Scotland and at Gatwick, including a small profit
contribution from the domestic and European services of the
company frmerly trading as Dan-Air. Last summer we acquired
the outstanding shares of Brymon Airways and have subsequently
expanded this company’s services with a successful outcome,

Our global alliance conunues to strengthen despite the difficult
curcumstances encountered by USAir Group and by TAT
European Airlines in France, USAur is threatened by severe low
price competition especially in its principal geographic market area
of the northeast United States, This has caused a deterioration n
its results which led me to advise the board of USAir that Britsh
Airways would be unwilling t invest further money in that
company unti! fts reconstrucsion plan s finahised and we are
assured ofthe company’s ongoing wnability. To that end the USAir
masmgement has commenced negotiations with 1ts employees

and their representatives but it is too early to predict the outcome,
Meanwhile USAir 15 introducing new marketing initiatives

which are expected to have a beneficial effect. A close working
relanionship has been established berween the two companies

and the expecsed synergy benefits are starting to flow throtgh,

In particular we are seeing additional revenues from the 54 routes
in the Unised States on which codestarmg 15 now 1 place, TAT'
had to cenfront the consequences o Tosing important contracts
with Air Inter, the State-owned French auline, and the economuc
recassiont int France. Qur pariner was successfial i negotiaomy an
agreement which led to 2 substantial restrucsuring of the company.
Ths b now been put into cffect and 1s expected 1o improwe
mwatertally the resalis in die present yoar. Following significant
changes m its senior mansgement, Qantas Airways 1s setthng down
well ard sartimg to propare fot ss planined privausation which

5 expocted to mke place withan the next twelve manths, Chee
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German mvestment, Deutsche BA, has expanded wa e nerwook
and, with 15 low ¢ost base, offers pood prospects for the e

Our enthustam for, and revogreaon of, quabn customer weresce
remans undinunushed and we have contnned to soek further
improvements 1n this area while endeavourng w contmmn voss

at che same time, Our atmactive arfivals lounge in Tormnal 4 a2
Heathrow was opened last September and has proved 1o be very
popular with our regular First and Club World passengers. Joundy
with Qantas we have recenty opened a new and much larger
lounge 1n Hong Kong, More mmproved loungs ficilines are under
construction, or planned, 1 the internanonal departures ares of
Terminal 1 ar Heathrow, at Garwack m the North Ternunal and

at Charles de Gaulle i Parss To unprove the connecung seraces
between our partner arlines we conbinue to work with urpert
authorities to bring the variows operanons closer together. Notable
progress has been made at JFK airport New York, where USAn
has moved into the Brinsh Awrways terminal; and & Chardes de
Gaulle arrport. A number of new’ routes and increased frequency
on established routes have been introduced duning the year

In June, together wath TAT, we expect to re-imroduce services
between Heathrow and Orly airport 1n Pars, following 2 favoureble
decison by the European Comnpussion. We have also itroduced
further improvements i our successful Air Mides customer Joyalty
progamme, admunistered by Awr Miles Travel Promuooons Lid
which recently became a wholly-owned Britgh Amways subsdsary,

We have continued o pay close attention to your Conpany’s
employment pracices and, as a strong supporter of “Opportusaty
2(HXI", we have made more progress towands otr targess for the
employment of women and the appointment of women managers,
High emphasis is placed on equal job opportunity for all, mcluding
the disabled and ethnic mmonnes. Onr employoes strongly
support four chandies, all with 1 focus on childeen ~ Dreamnght,
Operation Happychild, Cargo Kidney Fand and the Dhaka
Orphanage. Earlier this year HRH the Duchess of Kent and
Faunched our “Change for Good" programme whereby loose
change in any currency 15 colfected on a voluntary basw from
Ppassengers on our intercontinental fhghts for the bensfit of
UNICEE Winmnung for Customers, our stafl motivatsonal
programme, will conclude n July, having run foc more than two
years and afforded every employee the opportumty to atbemd.

I anucipate a new proganune being lasnched anrly 13 1995 with
the objective of mamntairung the strong enthusiastn and custoimer
service commitment of staff throughout the world. Oner sgua
our employees have performed extremely well under conmdendile
pressures 10 the marketplace and 1 am grateful for ther oy
support, without which the Company comdd net bowe achiwsd

1s present resubts and posstion on the wordd scune,

Your Company's strategy for the future 18 30 keap 1 die Sonefhont
of the globahsation of the aitline ndusey = resubiong Zaows
increanng detegulanon arcund the wordd, dong w.di moee
PrivAUsanoet, 2 governments recogme te hand cost of permong
control xd ownership. The consoquesices Wil incrivtdy femd wo
some indusry-wide oensolidation while ot the sene teme ¢
BHARY Tiew comhjlamics be crtter die muthsplece. o dhe donr s
we weill couscemerane on devlaping the synengy bemeiia oo fise
tervesurnenis we have tonde w0 the cast couple of years I will son
wmzhnmrunhmwummwmmm-ﬂ
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penetranon of the major markets. It 1 our hope that the European
Comuussion will puk 2 s10p to state ads thereby giving the playing
field in Evrope 3 more even and compeutive balance. The World
Travel and Toursm Council remans oputmusoc for further
substantid growth 1n trmvel and tournism, and this, 1s of course,
good news for mrline prospects,

We strongly support BAA ple’s applicanon for planning perinission
to develop Terminal 5 at Heathrow, without which the econome
growth prospects for the southeast of England, and the country

as 2 whole, will be reduced in the early years of the next century.
This new ternunal, in which 1 would expect all of lritish Airways
eventually to be housed, is vital to our Jong term suceess as

is also the development of a new large airliner capable of carrying
approximately six hundred passengers in our three ¢lasg
configuration. We are considering with the Manchester Airport
Authority, the possibiluy of building 2 substantal addition to
Terminal 1 at that aicpert which would accommodate all of vour
Company’s interests there, Later this year the new Compass Centre
located on the north side of Heatlirow, will open to provide much
improved and expanded facilities "or aur Operations and Cabin
Services departments.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In concluson, I wish to drunk nw fellow Board metabers kor thesr
contributions 1o our dehberations and ta the 2 hieverments m the
past year It has been a paroculan pleasure to welcome Barones
O"Cathain and Charles Mackay to our mudst. 1 behewe that,
together wath 2l of our managers, aur emplayees, and our partner
companes, we can look forward with mereusing contidence m our
ability to deliver both value for money and a consstent gh lewel
of service 10 our customers, thereby enhancing prospects for our
Sharchelders.

/

Sir Colin Marshall Chairman

British Airways continues to operate to high standards of
corporate governance. “The Code of Best Practice as recommended
by the Cadbury Committee on the Financial Aspects of

Corporate Governarice has been implemented, with the exception
of those provisions sull under review by the accounung

profession.

The Company has also mtroduced a Code of Business Conduct
which has been circulaced to all Group employees during the yerr.

The Board 15 made up of four Executive Directors and six
Non-Executive Dhirectors.

The Execunve Directors are Sir Cohin Masshall, Chairsnan,
Robert Ayling, Group Managing Director, Derek Stevens,
Chief Financial Officer 3nd Sir Franais Kennedy, Special Adviser
to the Board,

The Non~Executive Directars are people of varied background
and expeniense, who contribute to the growth and vieahty of

the aithne. They are paid according to the time they devote to the
affars of the Company,

The Board meets regularly ten times a yeae, but additionally
when necessary, and considers alf matters relating to the overalt
strategy, direction and fiture dewelopment of the nithne. The
Non-Executive Directors bring an indepondence of ydgement
and a wide business experience to these deliberations. They sre
given the informuson they require w enable them to meke 2 full
comeribution at Doard roctings.

In appropriate aircumstances sulepeadent profestonal advice
would be made available to the Directors, at the Companys
expense. Board procedures are the responsibility of the Company
Secretary, to whom all Direetors nuay refer for guidance and advice,

There are four standing Board Commnuttees each wath s own
terms of reference:

The Audit Committee comprises all the Non-Executtve
Directors and meets quarterly with the auditors to review: thie
aithine’s financial statements including the Report and Accours
to ensure that these provide an accurate reflection of the
airline financial positon ‘The Comnmtec also ensires that the
appropriate accounting poheies and compliance procedures e
in place.

The Air Safety Review Committec mircts hs-ronthly.
Its membszrs are the Chairman, the Special Adviser o the Boand
and four Non-Executive Threciorns The Commtiiee consders

2l matters relauing o the operations] sefety of the schne and w
wholly-owned substdiary umdertakings.

The Remuneration Cosmmittee w mmade o of fou
Non-Exorutive Diroctors amd mrew sasvally v cosmuder

and recomenend remyseranos for the Bwocsmrve [irecwn
The Nominations Cornmittee » mmde wp of the Chaicnan
and four Moa Bvocutive Tirecooes snd nvess st lewst onee

yoaz. It i responsible fior recammimending Boaed appewiatmerns sl
TE-APPOTNTE IS,
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BOARD MEMBERS, PRESIDENT
AND EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

BOARD MEMBERS

Sit Colin Marshall (6U)) Chainnan

Formerly Deputy Charman and Chref Executve, Jomned the Board as Chaef Executive i 1983 Darector,

Grand Metropolitan PLC, IBM United Kingdom Holdings Limuted, HSBC Holdings ple, USAse Group, L and
Qantas Alrways Limited. (B, D)

Sir Michael Angus (64) Nou-Exemtive Director, Deputy Chairman and Chairman of the Hoard Audit, Remunenttion and
Nominations Commirtecs, Joined the Board 1 1988, President, Confedemtion of Brinsh Industry 1992-94  Charman,
Whitbread PLC and a director of Nanonal Westminster Bank Ple and The Boots Compary PLC, (A, O, 1)

Robert Ayling (47} Group Managing Director

Joined the Board in 1991, Previously Director of Marketing and Operanons, Company Secretary and Legal Director and
Durector of Human Resources. Formerly Under Secretary at the Department of Trade. Director, Sun Alliance Group PLC.
Derck Stevens (55) Chief Financal Officer

Joined the Board in 1989, Formerly Finance Director, TSB Group plc. [irector, USAir Group, Inc,

Captain Colin Barnes (60)) Non-Executive Director, Chairman of the Board Air Safety Review Conttee

Joined the Board in 1991 after 36 years flying with the airline as a pilot, the last ten as Chief Pilor and the final five as
Director of Flight Crew: (A, B)

Michael Lyavies (3 1) Non-Fxecutive Director

Joinea e Board 1 ~9nd Charman, Calor Group PLC, Wiltshier PLC, Perkize Fords P11 and Simon Engineermg PLC,
(A,B, C 1))

Sir Francis Kennedy KCMG CBE (68) Special Adviser to Chairman crd Board

Jained the Board in 1987, Chairman, British Airways Regional Lid. Dhzlomatic Senvice, 1964-86. Director, Fluor Damel
Corp. and Smith & Nephew ple. (B)

Charles Mackay (54) Non-Executive Director

Joined the Board in 1993, Chief Executive, Incheape ple, Directar, HSBC Holdings pic. (A, C. )

Baroness O'Cathain (56) Non-Execitive Director

Jomned the Board in 1993, Managing Director, The Barbican Centre, Director Tesco Ple and Sears Ple. (A, B)

The Hon Charles H. Price 11 (63) Non-Exeautive Director

Joined the Boand in 1989. Former United States Ambassador to the UK, Chairman, Mercantile Bank of Kansas City.

Director, Mercantile Bancorporation Inc., Hanson PLC, Texaco Inc., Sprint Corporation and New York Times Company
Inc. (A. B, C, 1))

The letters in brackes indicace membership of the followang standing commiteees of the Board:

{A) Audsit Committee, (B) Aur Safety Review Commttee, (C) Remuneranon Committee, (17 Nomnations Comnttee
PRESIDENT

Lerd King of Wartnaby (76)

Chairman 1981-1993
EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

Mike Bate (39) Directer of Markesing Peter Jones (49) Head of Public Rolatios

Terry Bufield (53) Head of Network Management
Anthony Cockhn (51) Heed of Communicatrons

Alistair Comsmng (59} Dircter of Enpinecring

Dr Michael Davies (56) Director of Healsh Services

Reobert Falkner (46) Group Cheef clerotintant

Towy Galbraitly (55) Treasmrer

Valerie Gooding (44) Directer of Business Units

Kevin Hatzon (49) Manapng Dieccror Wordd Canpe

Brian Hayden (43) Director of Infermation Management
David Holmes (59 Director of Government and Industry Affur
David Hyde (57) Dircewr of Sefety, Saurscy & Bmtrontnen

Masrbersdp at 3t 73 May 199
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Captsin Jock Lowe (599 Dirsctor of Fiyst Openttasms
Clive Masen (500 Dirocsor of Punchesisy and Supply
Roger Maynand {51) Direstor of Corponite Sivorgpy
Joha Pasierson (46) Direotor of Clpemsiional Perfermmne
Gail Redwood (45) Compuny Secrvtory

Valerie Scoulat (38) Dinwter of Mty Ricwewenes
Mike Stroet (36) Diretor of Serraer Didiorry

Vadser winn Wt (51) Gostp Fivetivond Carniraller
Mareyn Witthar (353 Lagwf Livacter

Jobr: Watson (509 Dimeder of Ragivwe sl Suley
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DIRECTORS® REPORT

The Dhrecturs have plezure in presenung their Report and Accounts
Wt the year ended 31 March 1994 The as ounrs are set out on
Pages 1200 M.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The man actvities of Brish Asrways Ple and s subudun underakings
are the operaton of wernacional and domesue scheduled and charter aw
services for the arnage ot passengers, fraaght and mail and the provigon
of anaallary services,

RESULTS FOR THE YEAR,
Profit afier taxanon, sirrbutable to members ot Bringsh Aurways Ple,
smounted 1o L286 mulhion, zgamse £178 nulhon i the previows year
The Boand recommends a final dividend of 7 Y2p per share. An antennm
diviclend of' 3 18p per share was paid in January making a woul of i1 1p
per share, an increase of 9.3 per cent on the previots vear, Afier prociding
L1106 muthon for dovidends, the retaned profic for the year amounted 1o
L1810 nulhon,

PROPERTY VALUATION
Richard Ells, Chartered Surveyors, valued the Group’s principal
properues ac 3t March 1993 1n accordance wath the statements of asset
valuation practice and guidance notes of the Royal Insutute of Chartered
Surveyors Having regand to this valuaton, the opimion of the Darectors is
that the current value of the Group’s properues remams at approvamately
L2350 millon in excess of the net book value disclosed 1n the Group
balance sheee 2t 31 March 1994

In view of the specialised nature of many of the Group's operationat

properues, such as hangars and aircraft maintenance bwildings, 2 sigmiticant
proportion of the total valuation 15 on the basis of depreciated replacement
cost, the balance having been valued on an open market existing use basis,

PIRECTORS
During the year but prior to the annual geneeat meenng in 1993,
the Board sppomnted Barortess O'Cathan and Mr Charles Mackay as
Directors. Boudy were clected at the annual general mmeenng in 1993
Lord White rettred from the Boand at the same annual general mecting.

Mr Robert Avling, Caprain Colin Rarnes and Sir Francis Kennedy

are proposed for re-clewon 3t the forthcoming annual general meeung,
Mr Ayhing his a service contract with the Company termunable by esther
party on two years” notice and expaaang m any event on his 63rd byrthday.
Sir Francss has a service contract with the Company which expires

when he ceases to be a Direcror of the Company or s subsdiary Boosd
Atrways Regronal Ltd. of wlich he s currently the Chairman  Under
Article 86 of the Comipanys Arucles of Asociavon, Sir Frans wall

be obliged to retire 25 2 Dicector of the Company at the annual general
mecung 1a 1996,

The names and details o the Directors are set out on Page 4 and thew
share mrerests are disclosed on Page 47.

FIXED ASSHTS
Dyetasls of the Group's tangble uses and investments are set out m Notes
13 and 14 wo she accounts,

EIABILITY INSURANCE
Hnch Asrways halds 2 Dhirectors’ and Officers” habeity isurance pohcy

EMPLOYEE INVOLVEMENT
The motivation and commutmesnt of all the emplovees caminues vo play
a major pert s the arhne'’s succes.

"Wmmnrg for Customens”, the awhme’s saff motivauonal prograsmme,

will conclode m July By then wictually all emplovecs will have had the
appociunty w0 e 3 one day et which emphaeses she vital role that
every indradual has i reeiing the asdint's cusotners. A new programene
with che olroctive of masatmng the saeng enthusiam snd service
covrmmtmant throwghent the andme w dae w0 be nnched ealy next

year. Thes will refoce thee revwits of an emplovee micwey catried owt m Jome
1993, we which 2l sl were mevieed oo gove thesr vacws on the C ornpamry
and o managtinem style

6 Beweh irwrs PR ol Napsis &+ Ausuonse 1995 24

During the vear changes i workong pravtnes s tucial to acheeve 3
profiable operation a2 Gaew ol powowed lisuted szl acton sy
vabun crew throughous the UK

The comwerns of the workione are understond awd most be deak with
apenly To achiew thie the arhine .od trade unism zeproenting rmpdayme
have drawn up 2 Stafl Chatter wiim h fivs down 2 L onimitment to 2 polecy
of achseving future change thrwigh o relscombap between the Compam,,
1ts eroployees and unsons based on openness and mwual trom

The afne’s Profic Sharing Scheme wall Operate tha vear with cweny
chpmble emplavee recenvang 1 8 weeks® pav Under the rules o the
Scheme chis can be twed few quire shares to be approproated to
parucipants and held i rrun The Board intends w make an egqurvalent

vash payment 1o these elyble emplovens not wishing to or able 1
particapate 1n the Scheme

The Savings Related Share Ciprion Schemne a6 now boen oporsted foe
a thned ume Under the batew Scheme, emplevees aoe able 2 save up w
A55 per manth, and after five years have the option of purchasg share
wath the moncy saved at the preseribed price of 286 pene per share,
ot have the maney refunded with imerest The Scheme matores n 1998
Some 62 per cent of emnplovess are akrvadv sharcholders in the autkne

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY
Britash Asrways policy a5 to psomote cqual opportunsy m coployiment
regardiess of gender, mace, volour or duability, subject only w capabalry
and saabihity for the task and logal requrcments Ax part of the
Opporturty 2000 wutative percentape tarpeis have beer set. for the
employment of women and ethnw sunorty managens by the vaer 260
and a dedicated Equal Crpportumnes execuuve has been appaumed oo
monitor progress, Wherever pomble, emplovees who broonwe disalded
duning employment are provided with an alternative jub whaeds maker
full use uf thor capabihies.

CHARITABLE AND POLITICAL DONATIONS
Charrable donauons made by the (Group dunng the wear amoumtad we
L479.000 {1993; ,£409,0004. No palitu al donatiom were made dustmg
the year (1993: ).

SHAREHOLDERS ~ NON-UK NATIONALS
At 31 March 1994, 35 per cont of vrdumry sharct 2.-7¢ b4y mon-UK
nanonals, compared with 36 per cent a0 M March 1393 §lavang copprd se 21
relevant factors tncluding the fact thar chen see 1o Linpe nteresm of wnghe oe
asonated non-UK mnonaly and, in die shience of uniomessen developnems,
the Drrectors da not expect (but witheut Inmweng thesr Freedom e act)
0 seck to exertise thea powers to rettnet non-UK share ownedep

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Company has comphed throughout e year under review wash the
Cade of Best Practice puiblwhed 1 Decemnber 1992 by thie Commpme
on the Fanancial Aspects of Corporite Governance eegt w rowpert
of the two recommendations on gomg concern sod wierna contosd ow
which the gundane ¢ of the accounting profewsnt; i swesed  The svdeans
have confirmed to the Bowed that shee Have reviewed thin stbeneent
wofar 3wt relates vo the paragraphe of she C-rle wecrfind fur s srven
and that, based on therr rewsew they roncar wath e skeermemt

CLOSH COMPANY STATUS
The Company % 1t 2 close compasy withan she mcansng of the Tucmn:
and Carporation Taaes Act |98 nad dws postion T ot changed smce
she end of the finencial vear

AUITORS
The soeditory, Ermt & Yosax, hwve wsdwaod s ar willageeon i combicnr
m office and 2 resohitint propeseg tiew reappormonont and selsncioy
she Directers v determmne thex semunersoon will be puspaond w the
anted] gemers] mectiy

Cxn brkalf o dre Beourdd
GF Rudwood Servmry
A% My 1904 s
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OPERATING AND FINANCIAL
REVIEW OF THE YEAR

UMMARY
The poe-wx profis for the pear ended 31 March, 1984 wax L30] mulbon,
up 62.7 per cent, a mgneficant improvement on Lt yeur despate compzntive
forces affecung the Company from many dives cons. The improved resdis
reflect our cost reduction mstiatves and the mesures we have uken o
umcrease revenues, parccularly premuum tatfic, In addinon we have enjovud
a benefit from weaker Stethng during the year, which bas helped o
mitigate the effecs of dechinng yields anming from exces capacity in the
market place. The Company achueved 2 107 per cont ncrease i scheduled
passenger waffic on capacity up 11.9 per cent, well shead of general vaarket
growth.

TATA member arhnes lost U584.1 billion on international services in
calendar 1993, a net loss equivalent wa 4 per cent of their revennies. This
campares with losses of LUIS$4 8 bullion in 1992, Brtsh Airways ol
contrast well with ths general picture, They reflect the aidme’s connnued
abilicy to counter economue and marker forees while invesung heavily for
the futur  particularly through produce enhancement and snvestment
new developing European associates.

OPERATING REVIEW

TURNOVER

For the year ended 31 March 1994 Group turnover increased by 13.2

per cent from £5,566 nullion to £6,303 mallion, A total of 31,595,600
pussengers were carried on scheduled and charter services dunng the year,
an increase of 89 per cont. Gargo tonne kilontctres were up by 11,1 pec
cent, represenong the carriage of 607,008 ronnes of cargo. ILevenue tenne
kidometres (RTK) for the year increased by $0.9 per cent wath avalable
tonne kilometres (ATK) up by 1.5 per cent and the overall load factor
was 66.5 per cent. Revenue passenger kilometres on scheduled services
increased by 1.7 per cent while avalable scat kilometres rose 11.9 per
cent, gwing a passenger load factor of 70.0 per cent, down by 0.8 points
on the previous year. Yield on scheduled services improved 3.1 per cent
on possenger revermae and 4.7 per cent on cargo, However, ex:zinding
exchange rate benefin, yield dechined 2.4 per centand 3.3 per vent
respectively,

Sigrficant progress has been made 1n developing our product and
standards of customer service, A £100 mullion, 18 month prognmme
of iaprovements to our premium brands was cons -

imnated ar the hesght of the recession when .
decline and was designed to enhance the con N
Airways by offering better value and quality :

The success of the strategy 1 proving isel{n L

milic which has grown by 6 per cent over tha p.

signe of recovery seen in Sepoeanber 1993,

Tae mwestment 1n products has inciuded a major intenior refurbishment
of the Concorde fleet and a new Firse Class Sleepar Semace on 40
mercontinental overnught fight. In longhaul Club Wodd cabins, new
seaty and the moyt comprehensive video system avattabie 1n busness clas
and mproved in-fhght service have been introduced. Arrivak lounges - the
finst of therr kand i the world — have openced at Heathrow and Gatwick,
They oifer arrrnng premum passengers a chance to showe | change and
ave breakfast before they leave the arrpurt. A fast track process through
immgeation and secunty for Concorde, First and Club passengers ha
boen inwoduced at both London aporss. Addinonally, Brinsh Astwnys
achweved the bust puncuaticy performance singe vatissnon, with B3 per
sent of thgha departmg watdn 15 munutes, four poimts up on kst vear,
Macker share on routes to and frem both London airports was 46 per cont
tbr the yesr, an improvement of theor percentage points on last year and
execending capacity share of 43 per cent. Our passenger nutidbers grow by
11 per cent, while she market grew by 5 per comt,

The azquamten of che princepsd Evropean 2nd domovtse routes of Dar-Asr
with ¢fct from 1 Novenmber 1992 contribmiad ve 2 boos w markes stwes
2t Gagenck of 11 percentage pomics 1o 41 per come and powenger wroffic

growth of 3 pr cemt Sygatic nt psgrovercnds have beon 1aade 2
Brtnds Maranys R eponaland 3¢ Garwck, i ludeng 4 smll meofas «owrt
bunon earned by Bramb Awrways (Eurapean Oporatioms a Guowick )
Lamted, former®y Do Ax Servaes L

$n addnon 1o the new mutes added 10 the nerwork kallownd the
xquuiaon of Hrymon Amways Limsted and the new fnnchue agteemens.
with CityFlyet Express andd Maersk Aw, sew services have been
ntrodus ed duning the year 0 Veroas, Thesalombe, Aden, Sana's,
Caleutta, Baltmore, Charkoas and Ssanags, and o Buronghan 1
New York and Manhester oo Los Angeles Flaghts 1o Aden and Sana’s
were sugpended 1n May 1994 bocavse of the confhict m the Yomsen

Several thowsand saff were imvolved m the Lunch of tee Btk Avwwn
Dream Ticket, & promotional campangn specifically dessgod to tamulate
the prermium market dunng the aucumn of 1993 1o abid w win

a bagper share of the Jesure travel markes Brosh Atrways Samburys pant
promonon was operated for the second year runmng and the axlme has
recently launched Word Offen, 2 ange of bargains priced tanm on seevie
wath seats that would otherwise probably pa unsold Al these mutistives
are conswerable succemes.

The terronst attacks on Heathrow i Mah 1994 and the sulsoguont
securry alerts caused constderable durupuon to flighis: 147 kb had v
be cancelled and a further 71" delays of up 10 24 hours were cxperiencesd
Qur saff showed outstanding dedhicatton and covrage sn dealing wath o
disrupnon caused 1o our aperations and W our custamers a5 Ty
and tesmmnals were closed by the securiy fores. The overall effsct on
operatmg profit for the year way estinavod at dose w L 10 mithon,

EXPENDITURE

Group expend * e rose HLS per cent from 5,256 milhon to L5807
mithon, Unit coss  measured by net opering expendimre per ATK
increased by 1.1 per cent it excloding exchange rate effects f25 4

3.6 per cent.

The average number of emplopees, s thm g WP VRS
31 March 1994 was 19.628. =~ - el CEnT g TR
Producavity, as RO Y £ R \
- " g OVOR SO e T wr L1646
: T AS A T e “iad SOCURILY prel
theumnrm( it _pwr? o e g TS T |
AL f o G anaring for the your,
Tt wets aseuted wth emplonse

-ires por apared weikt ks year

et ¢onTs 20 depreciaion coibimed rose v Y per com
<o 7ot of the farger flect being ofiwt by liower opexatang fvase
costs reticuting lower imterett rate costs, and some refinanang of opersting
Jeases g A finance lease bass

Fuel and oil costs incicared by 154 per cont wo L0646 mallive, Tarpedy
due o rddinonal fiymg gevenee arcraft ktometrus up 10§ per cent) 2o
exchange rave changes, partally offiet by 8.2 pes cont soductioy m she
average market price of fuel to 63.6 US cen per US serllon ker 1993.94
Enginecring and oridier an. tilt costs mcre sed 248 per cemt prncipelly
due w0 arcraft snd crew coats amoctased with the mew Gatwek b
Pittsbuogh, Baltomere and Charhotte wet loae sorvices wsing L15As
arcraft and coews and the hire of cazgo spave from other cxersa a6 veoll
as wncicased Gymy actresty and tund pesty soumreomnct §amdiog foes
and et rouse charges wire up by 9.7 per oot dior b0 soone By sctivicy
Hunding charges, catering and ather spsrsang coss thomased vy

10.6 per cont refloctng dhe incrorse s pasavgsrs corred and peonduct
e

Sellirigt costs wore 15.2 per cond Inglset prasicipaliv duve: we vishatsne seiiod
rrvid agent and ore-l exrt cotmmmmmnne vl nddtosnal sdnertiaeg sd
prostrtason perts Wivly o prosum setva

Progiouaees 1 rookicr e coS ool aI0TEE frt ot oy s plice sl
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OPERATING AND FINANCIAL
REVIEW OF THE YEAR wwanin.

mrw opporutes for sebstantul mmprovernent contmy W be dentatied
Sexff e fully trvolved 1 our cost SAvIng and Foveiies FERCRAT IRV
Lt smmer Operanon Brasnesorm mvrted all empiowens to make sugges-
ok for generating addinonal rewenie of trimnung costs. Mone than 5,300
ruggesnons were recerved and mary have been aceed we-n.

In the year to 31 March 1994 we again exceeded our cost tavings taget
of £15t mulhon. Sice the end of the year Botsh Aurways has embarked
on a management reduction programne which will be achieved

through carly renrement and voluntary sevetance, and 2 further review of
overheads and admunistranve progesses. Savings in the cout of operanng
the airhme are now running at over £580 mullion per annum through
better working pracuces, better value for mioney from our supphets, and
better unhsanon of aremit and other assets, introduced aver the last three
years. Awrcraft utihaation improved 4.2 per cent in 199394,

GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS

Thz geograpincal analysis of Group turnover and operaung profic shows
sigmficant improvement ac:oss all routes. European route operating profit
more than doubled ¢ £69 million as pastenger traffic growth of 13.9 per
cent kepr ahuad of capacity mercases of 128 per cent but margms remaun
unaceeptablv low

Anhuugh surnover on the Ameria mates rose I8 7 pet cv s to 2429
sarthon, wrnever oniginaung m thar region was up by 28 2 per e

vo £1.188 mulhon rellecting increascs 1n passenger volumes jarticularly
prequum buaness, cargo and exchange benefits. Qperanng profic an the
Americas routes rose 48.3 per cent, reversing the decne in profitabsliw
expenenced 10 1792.93,

Turnover un the Afnica, Middle Ezst and Indiap sub-continent routes
tnereased 18.9 per cent to L9 mallion, Opersnng profit on those routes
was £203 mullion, up 51.5 per cent. Far East aud Au.aralasia operating
results rose 619 per cent wo £95 milhon, reflecting tmprove] economuc
condit-ons 1n the region.

OTHER DEVELOPMENTS

With effect from 1 August 1993 Brinsh Awrways and Maznk A Hodmps
agreed to restructure The Plimsolt Line Limtied (TPL} m which Briosh
Arrways hebd 49.9 per cent of the equity. Urider tha agreement TPL nd
ws subsdiary underakings, Brymon Asrways Limuted and Plymouth City
Aurport Limuted, became wholly-owned subsidiary undertakings of
R:opsh Asrways Group. Bumungham European Awrways (renamed Maersk
A came a whally-owned subsidiary undertaking of Maenk A
Holdusgs Drymon Arrways fhghts 1nd Maensk Ar thghts (boch formerly
operated unde the brand name of Bryron European Awways) now
operaic wath Brinch Airways Thght codes, with aurcraft repunted m Brrsh
Asrways Ivery and with cabun crew wearing Briush Asrways umfoem

In July 1593 Bratsh Asrwsys entered mto a new franchisny; agreement
with the Cratwick-based independent commutns achine CryFlyer Express
Lrmated, whereby CaryFlyer Exprest operaces all 1s scheduled servces
wder the brand name of Brinsh Airways Express, usiog Dnash Atrways
hvery and nmforms. Plans for a smulic franchue ugreement wath Scotash
bused Loganak were annouixed 1 Apnl 1994 ro start 1 July 1994,

On 13 Mas 1994, the Group acquired the cemunmg 49 per cent
sharcholdmeg 1 Awr Miles Travel Promotions Lunecrd togedher with 2

petpeoat keence o we the Awr Miks” trade marks and w operae the
Aar Males scheme.

INCOME FROM INTERESTS 1N ASSOCIATED UNDERTAKINGS
AND OTHER INCOME ANTY CHARGES

Briish Agways shore of houcr of msucated undertaiangs decimed by
L6 miltion 10 & 11 muliton, prmcipally represcotiag cortkmmy, fones of
“TAT Fwopeon Aariines and Dewtsche BA offvat by e of profic from
Qanod anid proferred dredonds recervad from USAsr Othet wocome swd
Merges worsened by (30 mabort wo £37 sollion wee Yo Brosisnn
agpenes advances s TAT and Dieviche BA.

B Rk Arinys Pk Avenal Fapart 8 Ao [993.94

UsAar

USArr hae bren severcly affecied by ineressng competition in-xl
low-cont, bow-fare zerlencs s 1is poascrpal yrographor matkot 2rea 1 the
northeast United Sutes Pre-uix Joses for thesr st guareer eo ¥ Macch
1994 were L1S§196.7 milon and lones foe 1994 are now expeoaed 1o
exceed the 1993 pre-tax losscs of US§34Y 4 nulion. Akbough UIS$30
muthon of the St quarter Joses was aumbuted to pooc weather
condinons, the mam reason fev the Jomes arwes from mcursion by Jow
cost cartrers meo USAwr's markets, and USAICS pricing respomee ke tha
acton. Agamst chw background, USAirk managemens hat dar sp a
majat resteucturing programme USAsr made the followuy, satorwat
mn their 1993 Anmual Report:

*Unless E35Aar 15 ble 10 reduce us opernting coss, proseas amd mersating
competiaon from low cos, Jow fare arlines 30 USAur's markes could
have 2 matersal adverse impact on USAsrY cash powtion and tharsfore,

tts ability to sustun operanons. In March 1994, USAuir anmousced that it
had tmitated discussions wath the keaderstp of 1% utwortzod conployoss
regarding wage reductions, improved producity ~=.4 otlier voe savings.
“The outcome of these nogomnons 15 vacerias, but of umely agrecaicats
are not reached, the Company may seck other rotrucmining akormatyes.”

The myor retruswiring progrumme wcltudes negotiztings wit the
1nors, or which the outcome 15 vncertan 1 these negovanons Joe wog
succesdizlly contfuded withn tie nme ke whach the Resncid povtien of
USAxr requires, then the Prccturs behieve that a proveson Jor permancnt
demrunon an value 16 Hkely 20 be required sgasnat the prossm book vaue
of the Group’s avesment of £273.3 matlon {LIS$411 7 nubren)

Tn March 14994 Britwh Arrways announcad thas 1 wandd not make niry
wddinozal snvestments 1 USAir untt] the Company Las bern reamizied
of the cngoung vaability of the buswex.

The emenpng benefits of the alhance with UAir ane deslt with on Page ¥

QANTAS

Qantas announced 2n nnaudited groe prefit from aporssons of AS10 §
milhon for ther half' year ended 31 Daember 1993 Compared with
A$33.8 million for the sume periad a year a0 Grovp profic alber tax

for the «ax months to 31 December 1993 amomenced o AS71.7 nwlhon
vompared with 2 Toss of A365 2 nulkem m dse previows K v,

which included significant abnormal wems relatng, to dhe Sopuntion

of Australug Awrdine |, i edundancy and otlier ressrucunng coet

The improvement wit Jarpelv due w0 mcreased passenger volumes e
meernational and doracstic m rkets, 2nd mieree savisg. el om the
Anatrabsn Siovernment’s recprisksanon of Qanet i Febrxey 1993, offs
v dechreng yiekd on both damncosac 201 sirriatonal -ouses. OF the smor
mernaticnal rouses, Jaman, The Orent and “oew Zenland made posiime
contribubons. Ewope «ad The Americas ¢ amiued w0 waon kowes e
10 hrer firres uad over copuaty snd suwe Marck 1994 1 manber of cluspes
have been made s rene Pacbic roure scheduscs stchsdiong e costinon ol
thelis oo Sum Frameeca

Qonew his enbarked on romdersble smesament i brand snd podect
enhncrrments wcludung s-cabun service and frcdimes on the growesd

The suewtegic partnorshap betwoen Breomh Axwovs smd Qs coamcmes h
provsde oppocrentties wn enbnce the mage of prodecs readalike s btk
comparnss” caseners such e she new (ot Explover’ rowrnd-the-medkd
frrms amal roesprocal fiogen  yer buonafies Both cremprres we wartlang
1o teduce coms by co-op rak, o0 saue prchestng, fochum sl sl ssne
actevicres amal by shang seme amets ol grownd facllitivs, twciuleeg weiv
Tounge factlivies at Hong Kong. The most nocide devdopuint. hews.,,
s Quras” decowen e il the DIAIS rorber pumermame risae,
devuloped by Berwh Adcvnzys aoid sohl w3 tnibet of wther Wil
CQuemon, will fowest AS TS ok i e sywican yee | R rwstidis

The T% pet cum of the e ovmed by the Avaioden Cowrmme i
woaienl s be ol iy o pbibic Swutrom o 672 neal Sowerid v e Jovs HEYS.




TAT BUROPEAN AR LINES
The resubs from TAT have been dnappoiniing, manly 2 resuk ol
the depth and duranon of vhe French eueson, the Tom of the A Inter
cantract and 2 lew level of penctration of the French onginating ntarket
on imnternat: vl routes,

A jount TAT /Brinsh Aicways plan for restructuning was accepeed by all the
untons pvobved sn Febouary 1994, It ivelved substantial cost reducoons
and the boss of approxumately 300 jobs out of a wal of 1,500, mamly fight
crew and admumstraton s In addiwon the copunercial organtsation

of TAT has contracted ot o] s sales and marketing acoviuss to Brinsh
Asrways. Cost per passenger boanded this year 1 expected to be some

30 per cent below last year

On the domeste network some routes have been closed and there 15 an
overal] reduction 1n the number ur seats offered o that capacity more
closcly reflects market condinons

TAT has retuned most of its exsung mternatonal routes, subject to

a coser mtegranon with the operations of Deutsche BA, New services
have been started from Nice (o Brusscle, Manchester and Rome, and
fron: Lyon to Rome, TAT has alio started operating two daily services
o Heathrow from Faris-Charles de Gaulle. These wall transfer to
Paris-Qrly by the end of June 1994, TAT plans to operate fiom Orly to
Marsellle and Toulouse by the start of the wanter season,

DEUTSCHE BA

DPeuuche BA experienced lower dhan expected trafie Jevels 28 2 conse.
quen e of the recesian ot ske Gernun economy. 82 per cent of Deunche
BA' scheduled pass: npers were carrted et Jomestic sepvizes, Ovenal]
Deutsche BA' domestic scheduled traffic grew by miors thas 90 per cemt
m 199394 compared with last year. New mternational scheduled routes
in 199324 mclude Stockbolm from Municy and Berlin, Ankata from
Mansch, Oslo story Scutrgast and Beshn, and St. Petensbur.r and Moscow:
*  from Berlry PMevertheless ovenll seat factors remain duappomting.

This summer, Dettsche BA commenced operapons from Frankfurt
two Pans-Charles de Gaulle and from Berhn and Munich to Madmid,

= The route from Pans-Charles de Gaulle 16 Mumich, previously operate
by TAT, has been taken over by Deunsche BA. Deutsche BA has entered
the bury Munich to Dusieldorf matket with seven fhghts per day.

Since April 1994, the Deutsche BA operacon has been consolidated at
163 new head office and prinaipal opetating hub  Munich Detunche DA
1 expected o improve 1ty performance substanually 25 1ts recent network
CXPANSION Matures,

ALLIANCE BENEFITS
Group resubes for the vear reflect early cost and revenue benefits from our
global athance amountng to some £ 14 milkan compared with the net
Toses onginally anticrpated. All partiters are now acerumg benefits frxn
the Homh Airways global athance
The magonity of the benefit hay cone from the allance wath USAx,
where woek on achieving benefits from the mansatiante partnershep
1 now well advanced. Cost savings have beers acheeved m many areas
wichading jomt purchast iz wutatiwes and engrncering best frachice
Reverue benefits, winch make up the magor part of the benefiss, hawe
principally been pemersted by intauryg the Bratlr Asrways and USAse
roune networks theough codeshar oy Jonnt fequatl Meer prograresnes
and co-crdination of the arknes” sales efiores. ldennted bemefies from
she USadr alllance are fovecast to dediver aromndd 710 mbdhon 1 benefis
this year, larpely frow 2ddiione] revenme

FINANCIAL REVIEW

LOSS Obd THSMISAL OF FIXED ASSETS
Wat Toses on dbaposl of fowd smers smowsied 10 L5 smilmn conmpurod

with » profit of £15 milllom st yeor duc 1o provrebn: mada syion
“TriSear ireral ikl fur roncle,

NET INTEREST PAYABLE
Net snterest prable soie 306 nolhon 1o 147 albon reflacong the foll
vear efiece of 1992973 atecraft delverics and aecralt borrowm offen w
part by kower wnterest cates, the effect of the riphts e, snd the 2erac
of cuerency buses on revahaaton of poneral purpose Torns

TAXATION
An amalvsas of the tax charge 15 act out 1n Nove 10 w0 she aguouncs
The wxanon charge was 5§ per Lint of profit before tax The efecove
rate 15 lower than the standard tax charpe due laowely to capral dowan ¢
on fleet 2cqumnons cxcoodig the charpe foe deprecation and te
tubunon of prwr year loses 1t w expected that the tax chaepe oy
199495 will be w: the regron of 25 por vent

EARNINGS PER SHARE
Profit after tax was 286 mulbon, cquvalom to carmoags of 31 3p pri
share compared with 23 1p {sfier adpustiment 1o take oo acoum tee
bomus chment of the ryghts 1ssue) Lt year (On 2 fully ddumed bhans,
cartungs per share were 28 7p

DIVIDENDS
The Board reconumnetds 2 final dondend of 7 92p pex dhare, g a tetad
dividend for the year of 11 1ip per vhare, comsared wath 1M 16p {ahiet
adjuxment} per share 1n the previows year, 3. wcreaie of 1 Y per et
The total dividend w vovered 2 7 tmes by carmings The Binal dividend
will be pad on 29 July 1994 o sharcholden regascored an 1 Jub 1994
The votal cost of the dovidends w £ 1 smthaon, leavnng £ 180 snlkion
to he trunsferred to reserves

SHARE CAPITAL
n 11 June 1993, Briosh Auwavs rsed 442 rnlion, net ol o xponses,
im way of a 1 for 4 rights seue of 185,455,636 new ondmary shars of
25p each. On 15 June 1993, 1,615,949 ondwary shares were woed on the
firt opportumty for conversion and «xchange of rhe Comwertidsle CCapaal
Bonds. In addiion, L34 mmlion was rased during the vear by the exercae
of options under Emploves Shae Opuon Schemes

REVIEW OF CASH FLOW
Nt cash neflow from operatinyr activities totalied £7 % smahon, up
107 nullon on 1ak yrar Net omtlay on airersdt and other oed amon
the year amounted o JH4Y million, mcluding £643% mibion of xwets
acqume;] under finance leases and sue purchaae srrsngeniens 11993
L0amilhon and (513 wullon ropecavely) and £ 136 rmibon
L1993 574 malkion) was mvestedd 18 amoucated enderahing, prasopatiy
USAw, TAT and Deutschie BA Thewe wene the chuet facien m scosomany
for a lower financiog requareiment af [454 matlon conpered weth
A L115 midbion Jat year

WOIRKING CAPITAL
Ar 31 March 1994 et current awsets woee (429 mmllkon campared
wiath net current balnlitses ot (2714 millon a vear age Thee s s
change 15 due w4 L6%Y mulbon sncrease m shiort-serr bows ol
contnbutimg oo sotal kqind awets of 21,226 rulen st the end of the yenr
The hugh level of cash held w a rermit of salong, sdwmanage of she cacent
matket chace 1 borrow ofl siwaciee o m advance of plerned
capstal eependuare 1 the futrr: 1wl the necd W provade £ warmd
pradent workiog balatsce.
Sales s advance of carnage dechnod by (67 milien v L6178 silen
Jacpuly due vo roclmndic smon of certar uecioe sshee sl discmune
fream wrade cvodwors shos v offect by e smcovene 10 vebume of s

CAPITAL EXFENDITURE
Crroup capiinl expemdinune o kiglile o aml irrevancna x wt s
o [Novwws 130 amal 140 ve thoe secramnts
A vnayer clemait of The copitel expernitimic s sopiife s, s Too e
soeuiorton of mew abcil ol by wwscigiac prisviiim., Soaoce loase
Aowgh bise purchow acnigeitie Bowih Alrvaw s s 2cucal e
Heraagpemeris v Jouse olernil wealve cxbuodiie oadd wiliso: upTetnm dene
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OPERATING AND FINANCIAL
REVIEW OF THE YEAR wwnt

AIRCRAFT FLEET CHANGES

One Boawng 747-400 and one Boemg 737-300, btk of wach had
boen delivered in che financial year to 31 March 1993, entered sernice i
April 1993, Two Bocing 747-400s, three Bocmg 767-30(k, rac Bocing
T57-200 and six Bacing 737-400s were debvered to the auchine, of these
taree Boemg 7371005 have yet to enter service. “Thror Boeing 767-200s
bave been wet loasedd front USAir m onder co operats the Gawick to
Punsburgh, Baltimore and Charlotte routes.

Three Bocing 737-300s have been returned 1o the operating lesor and
one Bocing 737-400 has been sub-leased to a thind party. Vo Boang
7372005 were sold during the year.

The acqumnon of Brymen Arrways Limited with cffect Bom 1 August
1993, brought with it six de Havillind Canada DHC-7s and five de
Hawvillind Canada DHC-8s Since acquissucn one DHC-7 was stood
down and one DHC-8 was returned o the lesor.

Six BAC 1-11-500s 1n service at the beginmung of the year were stood
down. During the year 20 BAC 1-11-5t0s which had previously boen
stood down, wer sold.

ATRCRAFT ORDERS

No orders for new mwcralt were placed m the year. Reflecung

our intention tu focus on maore profitable growth and higher ik
wiluaten, opuons on seven Boeing 747-4005, seven Doang 767-3(0,
one Boeing 757200 and ten Bocing 737400 were canvelled during
the year, By Airways still holds orders and options for 94 atrcrsf
incluchng 49 Bocing 747-4005 and 2 Boeing 777s. Dunng the
current year to March 1993, the Group expects to take delvery

of four new areraft,

INDEBTEDNESS

An analysis of the movements in Joans and capital obhigations sader
finance leases and hire purchase armngements for the year ended
3 March 1994 1 set out in Note 24¢ to the accounts.

Two Boeng 747-400s, three Bocing 767-3ixs, one Boang 757-200
and two Bocing 737~ 400s wrre acquired on hire purchase arrangements
by vy of Japanese leveraged leases. A further Boeing 767-300, which
was delivered in March 1993, was strmlarly finsoeed during the fnancal
year 1993-94,

One Bocing 737-400 was purchased outright by way of an 18 year U
Dollar Joan sccured on the aurcraft, and a further Boaing 737-400, which
has been sub-leased &0 2 third party, was acquired on an 18 year US Dollar
ftance Jease, Both of these fimncaings made use of an exastng symdicated
bank facshey.

In order to reduce finanaing costs, 13 finance loased Pocing 757-300
were progressvely bought 1n duning the course of the year. In a sepatate
transaction, four Bocing 767-3is held on extendibde operanng leasoy
wene re-financed oo motigage loans and brought on balance sheat,

Ia December 1993 2 Bocmg 747-100 was sold and leasord buck on an
opraating lrase bases for 2 term of fone years, In February 1994 Brytoh
Aarrays gave notice of 18 inention to torsunate extendible operanng
lctses of vwo Boewng 747-400¢ sn Devember 1994, reflecting the atrhecy
WICCEM 101 IPIProvIng airceaft wiilication and shus prosporsively voqummg
fewst aweraft than hed previowsly been planned.

WET DEBT: TOTAL CAPITAL #ATIO

10

The Group has sdopred Finmast Reporuog Standend 4 *Capaal
Enstrormens” and consequenty she Comveriible Capnal Bonds haw
bacty mchuded under rreditors, Om this basis, borspwiogs. ferchuskog
Conreorsiblz Capicst Bonds of £316 milliond not of casks, shortaterm hoam
and depows during e yeor fell 78 million 5o £2.0%5 milllon. Cagual
vl pasorves ose te L1527 oelilion hopod by dlve £442 willion Righies
Tnowre. Tl met dobt: Wil capitl cxie wos 9.6 per et on the myaiad
bacig, 2 10 pont woproveront simor it yont.

Besly Abeindss Ple Aperiiant Riggurt ¢ Awpiriig 9394

FUTURE HNANCING ARKAMGEMENTS

The Gooup’s boldeir uf Lo sl shart-tera heans snd dapass. sopetive
with cotnouned luading xacibiees, soe sufficien ke cavr vive il oo of A8
firn mecralt doleweriom due 1 she neat vwe fmoocul yeam The sogumsen
of Bocing 747-400 and Boeung 777 asocrait scivedebad for delary

ducmg the hext sl years s expecied 1o e Snznced parmally by wmendl
casls Bow arxi parteally through external Seancumg, wchubag conmrmed
facibuves arranged prios 1o delwery Brsh Awvarw bas srvanpenen
through 3 faciiety provided by 2 eymcdicate of hamios for % w0 Jogweec crtvom
of these aircealt oa i Abrmaove hawe Bocave of the Brcsssty w Mam
arcraft ocders well vy advance of dalrvery, 3 W nat sconmme Sor Doy,
Awrways to have commansd fondang 1 place now for 2t

ecdert, many of which relase to asreraft which wall nat e deleverad S
several years. Braush Awrwsys pohicass 1) this vagerd are m Line wath der
funding policies of ather sirhives [n addition o0 2t hsswd inahang
facalities, the aihine ha 2 sumber of uncecured Wormv, g of Lotk »
shost and long-oerm namee which may be wod & v puiversl punpess
ot'the Group

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

The Group docs busiiess m appresgmately 120 joromn currancre whach
account for spproximstely fi1 per vt of Uosup rovesowt and approia-
mascly 5 per cent of aperaty expeasies The Cirmapy proerios & sunpbis
10 mast of these currencies The prnopal oxcopom st the U Dol
and the pound Storhryg, m wisnch the Commps han a defiout arwetsy ram
capital expenditune and the payment of some loaung ros, sogotier with
expondsture on fiel, which w payable 1 U Dollace sid tiwe maparsty wi
sl costs, central overhicads and athior leaumg costs, whach sor pavalle
pounds Stetling. However. the broad spread of corremesss 1 the busanes -
many ef which are heshod 1 the US Dinllar and dhie povad Sedisg, - gpvm
the Group s moacure of protection apwmt exchae re wnrwnems snd
reduces the overalt scamtivity of the Group's oeudis to enchonge e
fuctuatnons Notctheles, the Graap can expersonce sdvare of lwsabod
effocn. For cxample, o pounds Soechang weakaned spatat e 175 Dallar
and strengthenod againy other magor cuerencues, the ovoonll alfnct waould
be Likely to be adwerw: whe the reverse woukd be iy sn produce

2 benofical effact.

The Group soohs 1o reduce 1z forapn exchange eusosune sy, o
ERTHICTIONE 30 YATHOtE cttrrencies Khrougie & policy of maschog, 2 ke

as poarble, receipts aid peymenis i sach mdmisdual Fecmsicy Swueplanes
of comveruble carrencics ace sold, wther spot or Svwaed, fur U5 Dollan
and pounds Steshng,

The (roop bad forwen) rontract ouetanday, 1 3] Meats 1994
forougn currency ameouring to USSZ72 mellon for US 1 iwllor parchusos.
AL79 mulbon to bedee fuvure rovenue Slows snd {4 0l fec pupsscesin
» acher curronecs.

Ty sddvaon 4o the pramsary wlfoct owned dhoove, schange e
TRaveEments can affect darmand fee services, eypecully Tacn Jewie
wravellers whow decavon whether 2nd whien: s xovel mev foor o5 3 sealt

atwernpt 1 antcipare Bioely champes we dhe pucioon of domamd

OUTLOOK

W i to relaomch Clubs Barome luoer i your, preesivg 2 s
comiriibic sed suncuve cobin for dus one s Beguco gy of
pumengers. Qo wveall copacity gaanake Wil Soizage snvwind 4 vt oK
o 199493 I werm ol e setwac. prodet vad sucvine, s ovy
Sozi on coik 2mad amot willisten we clieve we 3o doand o souly of
the compesiton 2l i the TOUI e siowin B svsiug:
Covagiiton will mor sdedkam, e w20 wery ool plevad 3o 1l
mmwdmmmmmum
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS® RESPONSIBILITIES
IN RELATION TO FINANCIAL STAT:MENTS

The following statement, which should be read i conjunction
with the report of the auditors set out below, 1s made wath 2 view
to distingaushang for sharchaolders the respective responsbibines
of the Drrectors and of the auditors in relanon vo the finanaal
staternents.

The Dirccrors are requited by the Companies Act 1983 1o
prepare financial statements for each financial year which gave 2
true ard fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the
Group as at the end of the financiat year and of the profit or loss
of the Group for the financial year.

The Directors consider that in prepaning the financial saatements
on Pages 12 to 38, the Cemnpany has used appropriate accounning
policies, consistently applied and supperted by reasonable and
prudent judgements and esamates, and that all accounung
standards which they consider to be applicable have been
followed.

The Directors have responsibility for ersuring that the Company
keeps accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy

REPORT OF THE AUDITORS TO

the Brancal posmon of the Company avd wiwch enable b 3o
enstire tha the Gnancal staements comply with the Companses
Act 1985,

The Ihrectors have general respankbabity tor takeme sch swepe a0
are reasomably open to them to safepuard the aniet of e Lroup
and 1o prevent and detect fraud and oiher prregulartes

The Iirectors, having prepared the finanaal savemons, huve
requested the auditons to take whatever steps and undertabe
whatever inspecnons they conkider w be appropriare for the
purpose of enabling them to grve thew audic report.

THE MEMBERS OF BRITISH AIRWAYS Plc

We have audrted the accounts on Pages 12 to 38, which have
. been prepared under the fustorical cost convention as modificd
by the revaluation of certain fixed assets and on the basis of the
accounting policies set out on Pages 16 and 17,
RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
| AUDITORS
As described above the Campany Directors are responsible for
the preparanon of the accounts. It 15 our responsibulity to form an
independent opinion, baed on our audit, on those accoums and
to TEpOIT OUr CPINION 1o youl,
BASIS OF OPINION
We conducted our audit 1n accordance with Audinng Standards
issued by the Auding Practices Board An sudst mncludes
cxaminagion, on a test besis, of cvidence relevant to the amounts
and disclosures m the accounts. It ako mcludes an assewment of
the signific2: £ esimares and judgements made by the Directors m
the preparatzon of the sccounts, and of whether the sccouncmg
policics are approprizie 1o the Geowp’s crcunutances, conssiemdy
applicd 2nd adequately disclosed.
W planned and performed our qudit s 15 to obtara 3 the
informatbon, vad explenatrons which we comsiderod necesary
in onder w0 provide us wich yaffacrent evidence 1o give reasenable
assurancs that the accmines are fiee from matenial rmssizteaent,
whether tavsod by fbuad o other wregulority or error Ta formung
vur epinion we dse ewdhroed dhe sverell adeqmoy of e
presenwution of infyrmariyn in the sccoums,
Irvsmmmenit dn ISR Group, T,

disclosed i the accounts concermsng the Group's ivessnent of
£275.3 rmlhon m USAir The valuz of the Grouwp’s stvestmient
15 dependent upan the s confisl outcome of the rstructurig
instiatsves proposed by USAwr. The crcunmtznces refatng to ths
fundamental encertainty are fally described 1 Nose 17 to the
accounts Qur opriuon 15 not guadified 1o th meypoct

OPINION

In our opmmon the accowuts grve a rue and Faor view of the
wate of affaus of the Canpany snd of the Group 2 at 31 Manch
1994 and of the profit of the Group fr the year then cndod and

have besn properly prepsred 10 accordance with the Compamses
Act 1985

G s s

Browt & Yowng
Chursewid Awstirnsents

Rapiwered Swillsey
Lo
3 May 1954

Btk o 1 At faper 3 dosw. W08y 1
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: GROUP PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT {
Foe she yor oniod 31 Mok PFO4 ‘
0 m’ 1
£ mlles Nove W e 1
TURNOVER 2 6,308 5,566 |
Cost of sales 3 {5.702) {5, 160y
Gross profit 601 406
Administrative expenses 3 (105) )
OPERATING PROFIT 4 496 310
Incomte from interests in associated undertakings [ (11) (n
‘ Other income and charges 7 (32) Yy
| (Loss)/profit on disposal of fixed assets 8 (5) 15 ‘
. Net interest payable 9 (147 {114 :
. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 3ng 185
! Taxanon 10 {153 m
' PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 286 172
Dividends 11 {106) 7% |
RETAINED PROFIT FOR THE YEAR, 27 180 o0 |:
i
EARNINGS PER SHARE $ 12
Basic earnings per share 3.3p 23.1p
Fully diluted earnings per share 28.7p 2.4 |
DIVIDENDS PER SHARE ¥ 11 11.10p 10.16p

1 Earnings per share and dividends per share for the yoar endod 31 March 1993 have boon adfustod 19 talse into anvsing the bomis
element of the rights isrue announasd in May 1993,
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BALANCE SHBETS
A 31 Mwch 1994

e ————— T ———

£ wilien

] FIXED ASSETS
' Tngble asers
Fleet

Property
Equripment

loveranents
Subsidfary undersakings
Azsociated wndermbings
Tiade investmenss

CURRENT ASSELS

Stocks

Debtors

Shogt-terin loans and deposits
Cash ar bank and in hand

WITHIN ONE YEAR

13

is

18
12

' CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE

21

NET CURRENT ASSETS/({LIABILITIES)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES
CREDITORS: AMOQUNTS FALLING DUE

, AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR,
" Borrowings and other creditors
Cornvertible Capital Bonds 2005

PROVISIONS FOR
LIABILITIES AND CHARGES

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Called up share capital

Reserves

Share prenssiim amount
Revalsortlan reserve
Profir and hess aooouint

Siz Cofin Marshall Chatrrmn

15 May 994

[ PSR PPRS TPNFPUT-S PN e e, i P

26

27

Limg Lamapansy

1994 1943 g 42 13

| 3976} 3537 3042t | s
' 478 d64 415 1! 456 |
[ 194 229 178 L 2:4!
4,648 4,230 4,535 1,181

' }

766 ‘ 66% |

547 448 I

28 98 26 i 22J

575 596 792 01
525 4,776 5,327 1,282
48 40 sl 33|

1,083 1,009 1,095 | 1,018
1,194 495 1,116 ] 439
32 13 25| | 23

2,357 1,577 2,279 1,813
(1,928) (1,851 (1,946) 11,8481
429 (274) 333 (330

5,652 4,502 5,660 4,551

L @l pess | tsfma*l 13,203)]
| 016 (326) . ;
(3,759) {3,219 13,72 (3,203
(66) {69 (66) 169)
1,827 1,214 1,470 1,279
239 185 239 185

157 30 | 457’ 30

27 45 7 40

L104| 1 94 1,154 ’ 1.024

PR - -

1.388 1,029 1,684 1,094
1,827 1,214 1,890 1,279

1R Sy O B Fagest ¢ ey 3 18
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GROUP CASH PLOW STATHMENT
Nor bhe your endeld 31 Mok 1434

Y TT

R S 2 Ny PR N g

oy
£ milion New i9ts Lo
NET CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES i 736 [+
RETURNS ON INVESTMENTS AND SERVICING OF FINANCE
Inverest recetved 62
Interest paid on bank and other foans (L33
Intercst pard o finance leases and e purchase arangements {88)
USAir preferped stock dividend received 15 |
Diividesids received from tade investments 2
Dividends paid (86)
Net cash outflow from returns on invesements and servicing of finance (228)
TAXATION
UK corporation tax paid 2N £
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Tangible fixed assets purchased for cash 13f {320) {57
Refund of progress paymenis 114 32
Purchase of interests in associated undertakings (69) s
Loans made to associated undertakings ' {57)] &
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the purchase of subsidiary undertaking {in) o
Sale of emgible fixed assers 44 708
Sale of investments 1 2
[ eoml 0 may
Net cash inflow/ (outflow) before (increase)/decrease in short-term deposits and finanring 189 J60%)
{Increase)/decrease in short-term deposits :
{maruricy dave & incepreor of wiore then throe months) {324) EF L
Net cash outflow from investing activities (622) 7
Nat cash ourflow vefore financig (13s) 363 )
FINANCING
Changes in bercowings 24¢
Bank and other louns raised 210 I 735 -
Bank and other loans repaid {123) {0
Capital clements of finaice loases and hire purchase arrsnganents paid a I‘G)i {19)
(29) 255
Changes in share capicl P
Lntue of ordinary shace eapisal 54 J
Shure pretiunt received _:!m 20
477 5
Net cush infiow from financing 448 3
Iucrease in cash and cash equivalongy A0h 343 e
GROUP FINANCING REQUIREMENT
Net eash finflewhoufiow befote imcrozse/{docrewe) m short-term duponn ad fnatsing {189) il
Acwisitions under loans, fimance Joases and hiet puschase arrangements i¥ean 648 52
Total fieancing requisament for the year 454 9,715
FUNDRY BY:
Mat casli iriflow from Srancing 448 i
Newr loans and Busnae foases tken ont andl hivs puschese dtravigsineins mude 48 $98
{inereschAdacrause i shiort-term deposits fmmnity data st Hospion of mors dhan tese owont I #vq
feiponn b et sind cosh gopboel e 9y iy
%54 fydus

, . by :1‘“ .
G e e



£ wilion

Profit for the year
Bxchange movements

Torml gans and fasses recognised since last annual report

For the yoar ended 31 Muxck 1994

£ mikten Neie

Retined profic for the year

Exchange movements

lssue of ordinary share cdpinal under the rights issue announced in May 1993,
on the conversion of Convertible Capitz! Bonds and on the exercise

. of cerrain Employee Share Options

{ Share capital

Share premium (after chargiog the cost of the rights issue)

- Goodwill set off in the year 27a

. Nec additions/{reductions) to sharcholders’ funds
- Sharcholders’ funds at 1 April

\ Sharcholders’ funds at 31 March

The difference berween reported and hustorical cost profits and losses is not matardal,

v T .
» i e b

} STATEMENT OF TOTAL RECOQGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES
b Pov iy wvaied’ 31 363 I

286
(12)

274

1’
3%

15

4 RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS IN SHAREHOLDERS®' FUNDS

Grnp

1994 1993
180 99
(12) (28
54 3
427 20
484 23
(26) {149)
813 (58
1,244 1,268
1,827 1,214
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NOTHS TO THE ACCUOUNTS
Por Bhe prov nd 31 Mol 1394

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The Group has sdeped the provisions of Financial Reportyag Starsbid 4 ** Zapaeal Inetrument’ aned coossgiendy dhe
Convertible Capital Bonds have been reclasufied wathan credisors salleng due 2ler mow thas ooe pear arcd
carresponding amounts ha.e beon restated.

No adjustment has been made m respect of the costs amociatod with the mue of the Croup’s capital wstrasmneen
vutstanding at | April 1993, which were written off 08 incurred, s the amounts 1vohved wess o £ mateesal
ACCOUNTING CONVENTION

The accounts have boen prepared under the hisvorical coes onvertion mobfisd by slse mclumnn of vertasn st
valuation, as stared below; and in accordance wath afl apphcable Umatnd Kingdom scconnnag standads and the
Companies Act 1985,

BASIS OF CONSOQLIDATION

The Group accounts include the accounts of tie Compuny and its subsicdhary undereakiawgs, each inode up oo 31 Maach,
together with the atributable share of results and reserwes of associated vndertakings. Cornan amoriased vndertaking
make up their annual audired 2ccounts to day s other than 31 March: in such cases the results disclosed by sebssquam
unaudited management accounts have been included. The auriburable resulis of those compares acqunsd or deposed
of during the year are included fo- e periods of ownership.

On the acquisition of 2 busmess, including an equiry interest 1n an associated undertakang, Bir values ane anrabuved o e
Group share of et tangibl assets. Where the cost of a¢quintion exceeds the values attribatable w such net asots, the
resulting gooduwilt 15 set off against reserves in the year of acquitaon.

In accordance with section 230 of the Compames Act 1985, a separase profit and loss account dealing wath the rosubts «f
the Company only has not been presented.
SEGMENTAL REPORTING

a  BUSINESS SEGMENTS
The Directors regard all Group activities as relating to the aithne bustness.

b GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

i) Tarnover by destination  The analysis of turnover by destination is based on the followsag crivona.

Scheduled and non-scheduled services  “Turnover from domestic services within the Umited Kaugdonn 14 anributed po the
United Kingdom. Turnon er from inbound and outbound services botween the United Kingelam snd everseas pons
is attmbuted to the geographical area in which the relevant overseas point hes.

Other revenie Revenue from the sele of package holidays is attributed 10 the geographical area w which the hotday
is taken while reveoue from aircraft maintenance and other miscellaneous services 1 attrrbuted o the basis of where

the customer resides,

if] Turnover by origin  The analysis of trnever by ongin 15 derived by allocating revenue to the atea s which the sale wes
made. Operating profit resulting flom tumover generated in each geogrphical arca accordmg by orgin of sle % not
disclosed as it is neither pracuical nur meaningful to allocate the Group aperativg expencditioe on this bams.

tii] Geoypaphical analytis of net assets The major revenuc-carning assets of the Group are comprised of the sircralt Boet, ol
of which are registercd in the United Kingdom. Since the Group's aircraft flset is employed flexibily acroes it
worldwide route network, there is no suitable basis of allocating such asets and relatod hablities to grogmphscal sagmant.
TANGIBLE FLXED ASSETS

a  Tangible fixed assers are stated at cost except for certain ayreraft Aeets and propernes which and sucluded at wdtion.
Depreciation is caleulated to write off the cost or valmation, Jess residual value, on the swraight kine basls.

b FLEET

i} Cest or aluationn  All aircraft are statod at cost with the exception of 2 sl nnnaber that are seaed at 31 Mascl 1988
valuations, with sabsequent expenditure stated a1 cost. The Concorde oot remmine 2t 13l book vabue, Aivcrad ot
current use are included at estimated net realisable value,

Aircraft which are financed in whole or in part in forcign curreney, sither by loans, finance Joases of hire purchase
arrangements, are regarded togecher with the rofated liabiliics as « saparate growp of amats 20d habilitiss i 2cooussd
for in forsign currency. The amounts ir foreign currency sre wanstated imvo Skeuling ot mus nuding 2t the betanac sywar
date and the net differences arising from the transation of aircratt coss and rdlavsd enfprpcy boaas, enndp for
those loans which are hedged, ane taken to rosorves. The cost of ol othor iveruft & fived in Soclicig at vaves ridiing a
the date of purchase,

&) Caplucllyation of imtercst ot progress payments  Interest (calewlaved basod on US Dellar LIBOT = pelbitod zaee of el
auzibuted to progross payments made on account of Aitcrait tmdor conswRetivn ¥ capitdliond snd adided w the sos o
the airersft concerred. Intorest capimlisod in raspoct of progess payments o those sirmnt which silaogoeislly bowoine
subject to extendible operanng lease arrmgsmonts it exrricd forward 2 writon off Gvar gie nizhel ke frestd,

i} Deprociation  Floot amets ewiiod, or hold on finance leases or hire purcdhese st aze Segpoe: ot oS
salculsosd oo wrive dows dhe oot or wilwacion oo the extimavad reddad wihwe at the snd of fhe D i |
Tives, Rosidu veloes snd opcostional lives ame reviewssd anmually

¢ PROPURTY AND LQUIRMENT .

AR peopartias, other thon those of 2 spocuilised use attuse sodli 2 | s sonl ettomilk wimmacee Latidng, weoe
pmg-.va:,..mywmm van itk wikie for axiwing ves or apor mNckat sdlve 1 Y Sl 1984 2 s St
fa thise sooomms om she wwmw&menMW!&m
are indbuded 2 e,

Pruviston b wde for thre daprostation of ol prgasty md cymipaen, apect Sivin Godivold oid, e spwn enposed
vorabiil Wves. aerd, fon dlive eue of Tasdloold poapotiies, ever dhe duricien of (i Jeasds K ST,
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1 ACCOQUNTING POLICIES rowbwini
d LEASED AND HIRE PURCHASED ASSETN
Where asens ave financed through fimance Jeases or hare purchase arpngements ander which substamtally 3 the redo
amd pevards of ownershap an: tansferred oo the Groug, the amets arc treased as it they Jud boen pue-ased outryghs.
The amount mciuded m taingible fiod 2aects tepresents the aggrogate of the vapatal ckenmenes pryable durtmg the Jease
or bare purchase wrm. The conesponding obbgamon, reductd by the appropriste praportion of Jease or bue prrchaw
payments made, 15 included ar. creditors. The amouns included 10 tryphle Fved pset 15 deprociated on the basy
describedd 2o the preceding paragraphs and the aterst element of lease or hire prvchase paysienes made s inluded m
interest payable in the profit and los accounnt.
Paymemts under all other lease arrangements, known as operaung leases, are chaeped to the rnfir and Jo% aucie 1
equal annual amounts ower the period of the Wease. In respect ot sarenaft. upessing lesse artanpemoms allow the Grovp o
termusnate the leases after 2 kmited penod, normally every five 10 seven years, wichoue Arrther matersal fimancial oblypnons
AIRCRAFT AND ENGINE OVERHAUL EXPENDITURE
Aircraft and engine spares acquired on the introduction or expansion of a flset are carned as tangible foed acsets and
genenlly depreciated in line with the fieets to which they relate. Replacement spares and all agher costs velanng,
the maintenance and overhaul of aireraft and engines are charged w the profis and Jow uccount on consemption nd
as incurred respectively.
ASSOCIATED UNDERTAKINGS
Where the Group parncipates in the rsults of parttierships or companies in which it has an equity interex of 22 per
<ent or more, but not exceeding 50 per cent, and is in a position to exercie sigmfizant influence, thoss wteross e
classified as associated undsreakings, The Group's share of the profits less Tosses of asociated tmlermkang 1 mcludod m
the: Group protit and loss account and its share of the post-acquisition results of these comparues 15 included 1 muorests
in associated undertakings in the Group balance sheet. The Group's interest in the resalss of USAir Group, Inc. 1
currently linited to its fixed preferred dividends and only such dividends are included 1o the accounts,
STOCKS AND WORK IN PROGRESS
Stocks and wark in progress are valued at the lawer of cost and net realisable value,
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash includes cash in hand and deposits held wath banks and other financial institutions whick aze ropayable on
demand. Cash equivalents are shore-term investmients with maturities at inception of less than thrae manths.
PENSION AND OTHER POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS
Retisament benefits are payable through separately funded United Kingdom pensior schiemen with oquivalant
armngemens for overseas territories. Contributions to pension funds are made on the basis of indapandent acimaesal
advicz and charged to the profit and lost account 50 a5 to spread the cost over the remaining service livas of the employess
- Provision is made based on actuarial advice for post-retiremnent medical benefits of employees 1m the United Sracas,
FREQUENT FLYER PROGRAMMES
The estimaved additional direct cost of providing free travel i exclange for redemption of miies carned by members of yn:
- Group' Execurive Club and Frequent Traveller programunes is accrwed as snenibers of these schemes aceumulase milos 2
DEFERRED TAXATION
Provisions are made for deferred raxation, using the ability method, om short-term uming differences and alf other
nuterial timing differences to the extent that it is probable that the habaities will erysallise 1n the foresceable fiature
FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION
Foreign currency balances are translated into Sterling at the rates ruling st the bslance shact date, encept for coram
loart repayment instalments which are transtated 2t the forward contract rates where anstalmens have et cowered
forward ar the balance sheet date. Except for those loans whtich are hedged, changes in v Swering value of
outstanding fortagn currency loans, finance leases and hire purchase arrangements whwh finance fixod amsts and of the
sclated aircraft are taken to reserves. Exchange differences arising on the tranation of not asscws of overscas subsdiry
and associated tindertakings ase taken to reserves. Profits and! loses of nuch undertakings are trandlatod into Stering a

average rates of exchange during the year. All other profi or losses aruang on wanslation are dealt with Barougds e
profit and less account,

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION RATES

At H1 Mawk Amoaal sovage

1984 1974 199344 ey

U5 Dollar 1.48 141 1.54 {4
Japanese Yen 132.00 173 164.99 FELY: ]
Deutsche Mark 2.48 2 43 2.53 Z s
Avstralinn Doller 211 214 2.21 217
Freneh Frane B.47 227 .1 "y
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Z  ANAYSIS OF GROUP TURNOVER, OPRRATING PROMT
AND QOPERATING NET ASSETS

e ™

2 TURMIOWER
Traffic revenue
Scheduded sermens - pusienger
« Jeeyphet end mail

Nott-scheduled serwices

Qther reveno~ (ncluding aireraft maintenance, package hohdays and other awhne services)

Turnover relating to soquisinons 35 not mawnal,

b GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS QOF TURNQVER By miet of oo sl ale
1994 1994

United Kingdom 2,848 2,585
Conanental Europe 1,112 1,608
Ewope 3,950 3,593
The Americas 1,188 927
Afnica, Middle East and Indian sub-continent 3%5 466

Ear East and Australass 620 k104
6,303 5568

¢  GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS OF QPERATING PROFIT

Furope

The Ameticas

Aica, Middle East and Indian sul~condnent
Far East and Australasia

Jt s impaacticat o separate United Kmngden and Continental Europe operating profit en a
meaniogfi] basis since the day to day opsrations are fully integrated. The operating profis
for these services are therefore rosubined under the headmg "Burope”.

d OPERATING NET ASSETS
Net asser,
Add back nzt non-operating habilines

Olperating net asets

Comprmng;

Tangible fixed assets

Swocks

Non-interest bearsag debrors

Fonshe delrtors

Other debrors wachiding aowounts ovved lry mirociesed wnidersafurygs
Prepaymonts and mewed eeme

Now-mterest bearing operatmg hiabilitics

Tiwed ervaltocn;

Cilver erolimrs ssekosdiot aovoniinty twid 0 ansotiaecd pewlersolsivgs
Otheer preatinn ad sochal seesriey

Foiraly me dgfbrod sneeme

VS ms Avn P it Bapore & s VY80

Lavnp

L. 23 [ ]
5,175 4.533
461 e
5,636 4,82y
149 in
5,785 ¥ 082
518 20y
§,303 3,564
Hy wron f daptiningn

1994 152
658 G623
1,777 1,615
2,435 2,238
2,000 L1
S ki v4
938 Bal
1,303 5.5u0
Ciwup

19M 9]
69 3
12% ! ¥4
208 134
95 59
4946 310
1,827 1.214
2,260 2,42
4,087 3,52
4,648 4,33

a8 P

: s
soq 7% |
63 100 |

LMM} L m!

1.01% *35
l W “h
: 0y

1
ll s, N ”"']
1. 0F9) (148508
A8 1.1%
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3 AMNALYSIS OF OPERATING EXPENDITURE Ly

P 194 e
Ernplovee coss 1,646 § 1%
Deprecizton 374 1.2
Arrcraft uperanng lease cous 194 224
Fuel arsd usl costs 6 o)
Engmneetuy amd other aucralt vosts ny a2
Lamding fees and en route charge 545 ¥
Handhng charges, ¢tenng and other uperating, costs 790 “i4
Sethng osts A3 Ti2
Accommedation, ground equipment and currency diferenes 442 MH
Total aperanng expenditure 5,007 5,285
Comprising

Cost of sales 5,702 5 1e0
Administrative expenses 108 98
“Toral operaung expenditure 3.807 AT

Opemting expenditure relanng to acquisitoas 1 not materzal.

4 OPERATING PROFIT
1 OPERATING PROFIT IS AKRIVED AT AFTER CHARGING:
Depreciation of Group tangible fixed assets

Cumed assets 251 215
Finance leased auncraft 5l 41
Hire puichased wircrafi 48 1o
Ocher leasehold usterests 24 ¥l
374 312

Operadng lease costs
Lease rentals - airerafi 194 224

- property and pquipment 84 s

Hire of equipment and charter of 4yt and crewe 47 At
325 125
Auduers’ ramunernon ) L o0
Ciroup anditors - aundit fres 973 piy
- other professionsd fees - United Kingdont 881 557
- owersens 329 gAS]
Other auditors - andhe fres 14 7
1,197 2.9
Directors’ emoluments £ £
Fres 167,9% 125,418
Salary ond benefits 1,108,135 1,404 §52
Prerforwsusite refuted borws 120,100 -
Share appreciawen rights Z11,070 146,224
Pengion consribvitns 13 214,791 505,337

1883, 71 L 382519

- P ppap— Y

o - — o . semrerere cov s b M P = e et —mttnh

e [ e T TR = g e



NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS weew
Fot she yoor andod 11 Mbaut 1994

4 OPERATING PROFIT jwwned:

Loonp

L midben 1994 1903
b RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING PROrit TO NET

CASH INFL.OW FROM QPERATING ACTIVITIES

Group operating prodit 456 b1}

Lreprecuation charges 374 12

Qither ems not involving the movement of cash 2 L]

Increase in socks and Jdebtors {115} 24

{Decrease) /increase 1n creditors (21) 1%

Net ¢sh mfow frun uperating acmties 736 529
¢ DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

Charman and Inghest patd Director Fa 2

Sir Colin Marshall

Sabery and bearefits 492,662 429,949

Prerformonce refated Rz 61,750 -

Srare upprecidtion righis 116,967 [11,%6%

Pemiton contiibution 122,640 122,914

798,018 663,230

Sir Colin Marshall becarae Chairman on § Fehruary 1993, Lord King was Chunman up
to 5 February 1993. The emoluments fexcluding Compeny's peanion contributions of the
Chaurmen as disclosed it the accounts Jor ¢he year ended 31 Manch 1993 wene:

Sir Colin Marshall £86,691; Lord King £478,790.

The Directons” remusemtion {excindit g Company’s penston contributions)
was within these ranges: Numibar Nomniary

L£10,001 - £15,000 !
L1500t - £20,000 2
L0008 - £25.000 2 1
L3000t - £35,000 H
L35,001 - £40,000 1 1
SO0 - LA5,000 1
n- L£50,000 H
L= W1~ 55,000 1
L75,001 - L£80,000 1
L135001 - L 140,000 1
AL250,001 - £255,000F 1
L275001 - £280,000 H
L295,001 = £300000 1
AL3B0,001 - (45,000 3
LAT5.001 - L4000 1
L540,001 - £345,000
A£665.001 - £670,000 1

Exccutive Directors’ emobuments (excluding penson contributions) consist of 2 basic salary wd 3 porformances rebate!
bonus. Salaries re reviewed annually by the Remuneration Commutice which consists of Non-Brocitive Disactnes
#ud 15 chaared by the Non-Ewccutiv Deputy Chairman. Performance velated bomisos are detven by cocporaie
performance targees whach are set arnually by che Remunersban Centmittve.

Share appreciation rights are sums paid following cxemise of rights undar the Broieh Asrwys Siwre Appoucingio
Rights Man }Wl.mdcnﬁtcmlcsofwhitbmpwzspamtofdg}mgmmdmbeemmd%mmwn
Sﬂp«mmtofﬂhegmma&trrwoymwsmdﬁhabdmaﬁ:wﬁamwms.wﬁngmmyﬁwmlewlrlnuiiw
right, which is peysble in cash, i the duloronce betwoe the macket share price whon the mgnt & awoched, wilk
upper it of 210p por share, and 163w por shwre,

Lord King held 625,855 shave appreciation rights at the tune of b veticamont o Chaiesmart sl Thvestor wi
5 Fabroary 1993, 308,500 of wiiich he excrcised in May 1993,

Twe Dicecsors heve waitvond fecs twefing ,L21,380 for the yer (1993: ome Dot ,£17 300).
Divceswrs” shave options dve . wwn 0 the mble of Direchors’ introsts oo Page {7,

20 W Abvage Mo Sl Mg & Savors D308
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5 BEMPLOYEE COSTS AND NUMBHRS

Niamber

The average number of persons employed 10 the Group dunng the year was a i T ows

Uhmzed Kingdom
Orverseas

£ mollean
Wages and salaries
Employee profit share

Social security costs
Contribunons to pension schemes

INCOME FROM INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATED UNDERTAKINGS

Attiburable losses less profies
USAir preferred stock dividend

QOTHE, INCOME AND CHARGES
Income from trade investments

Provisions against loans made 1o associsted undertakings and other investments

Other

{LOSS)/PROFIT ON DISPOSAL OF FIXED ASSETS

Profits less losses on disposat of fixed assets

Provision aginst zircraft held for resale  (Note 134)

NET IINTEREST PAYABLE

Interest povgble

On bank loans

Repapalie uholly within five years
Repayable in whole or i1 part after five pear
On finance leases

Repayable wholly within five years
Repaypable ivs wiiofe or tn part afier five yrors
On hire purchase arrangements
Repayable it whole or in part afier five years
On uther loans

Repayable wholly within five years

Repayable in vl or in part afler five yrars ~ inchading interest of £31 nrifiion
(1993: £31 million} en Comvertible Capital Bonds 2005

Interont capitalised
Hiterest toceivable

Currency Josss on revalwation of gonsmad purpase hoans 4t yetr ond

1994

42,799
6,829

49,628

L.l

1,193
21
121
54

1,389

27
16

(11)

(36)

(32)

(29}
(5

12
47

¥a

53
%
48

26
{10y

1oy
42,233

677
48, %50

a1

1,137

194
52

1,315

20

(1

(i)
ol

2

19
4

15

o

e

40

P

33

% 3%

114

In respoct of 21l kens, inclmding frrmos lases aud hive poochase armngerivans rpeuie n whole of 35 part dfier
five yoars, dhe fiwel vepaymant daes is Devemibar 201 1. The iaerek doves niige o 3.4 par some e 100 oy oot

{1990 1.6 par carit ko V1.3 par sotad.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS s
o e yoae amdal 31 Mook 1P

10 TAXATION frec also Nowr 28) Congp
£ milbiom b e

Botsh Amrways Pk and subsidrary undertad ags

United Kingdom corpomtion sex at 3.3 per cews {1993: 33 per com) 1 4
Prios yoar adpstments 2) (¢
Oversens 3
12 x
Share of ixanen n assocrsted undertaking: 3 it
is T

The charges for taxation have been reduced by the excess of tax allowances over
deprecianon ansing from the acquisinon of aircraft.
If full provision for deferred taxauon had been made, there would have been an
additional charge for the vear of £104 million (1993: £74 milhen), comprising:
Accelerzeed vapital allowances and losses 96 79
Other timing differences 8 (&1]

104 74

11 DIVIDENDS

interim dividend of 3.18p per share (1993- 2.93p per share) 30 23
Second intenm dividend of 7.23p per share declared on 31 March 1993,
in Licu of final dividend 5e
Final dividend of 7.92p per share (1993: nil) r[]

106 Ead
Interim and second interim dividends for the year ended 31 March 1993 have been adiustod
1o take into account the bonus element of the rights ssue announced in May 1993,

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Earnings per share is calculated as follows:
Profit for the year after taxation, auributable to sharcholders AL2B6m L178m
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 912,522,000 738,431,000
Basic earnings per share 3t.3p 25 1p
Fully diluted earmngs per share 28,7 21.4p

Fully diluted earnings per share are caleulated on a weighted average of 1,080,708,000 ordinsry shares

{1993: 907,681,000) after allowang fur the conversion rights araching to the Convertilde Capital Bonds snd
for outsranding share options and for corresponamg adjustments so income to climinate inverest payable o the
Convertible Capital Bonds aud w0 include notienal interest reccivable on the subscription cash for shages.

Earnings per share for the year ended 31 March 1993 have been adjusied 1o ke into socommt the boaus dlenwnt of
the rights 1sue announced in May 1993,

22 Dk Ao e Arvnd Ngw & Samints BWNY




13 TANGIBLE ASSETS

3

£ milan Nowe Pheat Prapey
GROUP
COST OR VALUATION
Balance ac 1 April 5384 655
Exchange adjustments 42
Additons 13f 919 40
Disposals {253) )
Refund of progress payments {114)
Balance at 31 March 507y &N
DEPRECIATION
Balance at 1 April 1,847 191
Exchange adjustments 10
Charge for the year 283 23
Provision agsinst aircraft held for remle 29
Disposals {te7) ey}
Balance at 31 March 2,002 212
NET BOOX AMOUNTS
31 March 1994 3.97a 478
31 March 1993 3.537 d64
UTILISATION AT 31 MARCH
Assets in current use
Owned 1,998 412
Finrance leused 511
Hire purchase armngements 1.274
Progress rayments 169 o4
Assets o .4 for resale 24 2
3,976 478
THE NET BOOK AMOUNT OF PROPERTY COMPRISES:
Frechold
Long leaschold
Short leasehold
Tiluation foont
Rewlued fleet and properties are included in the acoounts
at the following ameunts:
Fieer -+ 1988 waluation 836
« sthsoneent wddivions at sust 151
Property - 1984 salitation 32
~ swbsoquicnd additions at eost 7%
Total - 31 March 1994 147
Tagel - 31 Muanch 1993 1,156
1 shess assats had not boow revahived dhey would figve been
inluded 2t che Mllowing amoomes:
31 Marely 1994 943
31 Menk 1993 ¥z

613

33
(12}

{12)
340

194
229

167

24

194

14

827

ooy
726

6,652

12

992
(270)
(114}

7,302

2,422

374
29
(181)

2,654

4,648

2,577
514
1,274
257
26

4,648

126
79
273

478

19%4

146
70

G4

Corvagp ol

5.4
12¥
1.075
413]
3

6,652

P e
312

71
2,422

4,230

1,310
604

b ¥4
358
33

4,230

118
22
x4

464

1

212
37

11

1ny
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13 TANGIDLE ASSETS swonndt Compony isf
£ wilkan Fiowt Froporty Bgupmont 1994 ey
b COMPANY
COST OR VALUATION
Balance ar 1 April 5284 642 576 6,502 5508
Exchange adjustments 38 k) 126
Addidons 899 40 30 969 1,088
Disposals 253) {5) (11) (269) 157
Transfers from/(to) subsidiary undertakings a (56) {5) 52) {1
Refund of progress payments (114) (114) {1z
Balance at 31 March 5,863 621 590 7,074 6,502
DEPRECIATION
Balance at 1 April 1,773 186 362 2,321 2,083
Exchange adjustments 7 7 H
Charge for the year 275 21 61 357 259
Provision against aireraft held for resale 2% 29 4
Disposals {167) (4} (11) (179) 69
Transfers from/(to) subsidiary undertakings 4 4 '§]]
Balance at 31 March 1,921 206 412 2,549 2321
NET BOOK AMOUNTS
31 March 1994 3.942 415 178 4,538
31 March 1993 3,511 456 214 4,181
UTILISATION AT 31 MARCH
Assets in current use
Owned 1,978 35t 153 2,482 2,265
Fluance loased 497 H 498 600
Hire purcliase arrangements 1,274 1,24 875
Progress payments 169 o4 24 257 Jgg
Assets held for resale 24 24 53
3,942 415 178 4,535 4,181
THE NET BOOK AMOUNT OF PROPERTY COMPRISES:
Freehold 122 114
Long leasehold 24 »
Short leatehold 269 339
415 4156
Nt baske mommiodit
Dlehuaion Aot Deprodiatbon 1994 iy
Revalued fleet and properties are included in the accounts
at the following amounts:
Fleet - 1988 waluation 701 626 135 150
- sibsequent additions at rost 132 67 &5 34
Preperty - 1984 wabuation 28 21 7 11
= subtequent additions af tve: 77 13 64 L
Tol - 31 March 1994 998 727 27
Totad « 31 March 1993 1,056 755 Birt
1 these anets had not boen rewalwed they would have been
included at dve folkowing amounts:
31 March 1994 867 032 285
Xt Mtk 1993 295 962 287

24 sk tisgn P i o @ v 1959454



13 TANGIBLE ASSETS penswumds
¢ DEPRECIATION

Flects ave generally deprocuated over periods rangang from 14 to 20 years afier makiny sllowanice for msdual vakoos.
Pmoperry. apart from freehokd land, 1 depreciated over expocted wseful bife subyect 80 2 maxanwen of 50 years
Equpment 1s depreciated oves pertods ranging from 3 to 20 years, accooding wi the type of equipmant.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE COMMITMENTS G Compony
£ milben 1994 1998 1954 iy

Capital expenditure authorised but not provided for m the
accounts amounts to:

Authorised aud contracted 5,015 3,378 5,012 5,375
Asithorised but not contracted 816 593 815 552
5,831 5,969 5,827 5,967

The outstanding commitments inchude £4,635 million which relates to the scquuition of Bosing 747-400 and Bosing
777 aircraft scheduled for delivery during the next cight years and £351 million which relates to the zequicition of
Boeing 767-300 and Bocing 757200 aircraft scheduled for delivery during the next throe years, It is intended that
these aircraft will be financed partially by inteenal cash flow and partially through external financing, induding
committed facilines armnged prier o delivery,

At 31 March 1994 British Airways bad unused overdraft and revolving credit facilities of approximately £55 mithen,
In addition, Britsh Awrways had uncommitted money market lines of 4150 million {of which £87 millon renmined
undrawn) and US$45 million with a number of banks,

British Airways has also arranged a separate 18 year secured afreraft financing facility for USS2 bitlion whiah allaws for
British Airways to acquire certain new aircraft on a number of altermative bases, including under extendible aperating
leases, At 31 March 1994 the unused facility was 1J5§296 million. Under the terous of this facility, the financing banks
have the right to call for security from British Airways in the event that there is 2 materiat adverse change in the
financial condition of British Airways or in cther limited circumstances if the fimancing banks are not adequataly
protected by the value of the equipment financed.

The Group’ holdings of cash and short-term loans and dcposits, together with committed funding faeilities, are
sufficient to cover the full cost of all firm aircraft debiveries duc in the next two years.

FORWARDD TRANSACTIONS IN FOREIGN CURRENCY

Gy
1994 1998
The Group had the following forward contracts outstanding:
Maturing within one year
~ to cover payments in US Dollar US$272m  USIS#em
~ to hedge future revenue flous {Sterling equivalents) L79m L36m
=~ to cover payments in other arrencies {Sterbing equivalents) LAm Lom
Mawring alter one year
== to cover payments in US Dollar UsSsd2m  USHS0m
These forward contracts have been entered into to hedge future capital commitments and futtise revenuss.
ANALYSIS OF GROUP TANGIBLE ASSET ADDITIONS Cronp st
£ niilien Pheet Property ] 191 119y
Cash pard 247 40 33 320 377
Acqmsitions under loans, finance leases
and hire purchase arrangemenss 643 543 51
Acquisicion of subsichary undertakings 19 19 K
Capiwlised imterese 10 19 7
Accrual movements 30
919 40 33 992 1,07
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13 TANGIDLE ASSETS pwwwesds
£ ithen

g OPERATING LEASE COMMEITMENTS
The aggregate payments, for whuch there are commutments
under aperating leases as at the end of the year, fall dus
as follows:
i) FLEET
Wthin oue year
Between one and five years
Over five yanrs

Amounis payable within one year relate to commitments
expiring as follows:

Wthis one year

Between one and five yoars

Chver five yoars

if) PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Within one year
Bettveen one and five years
Over five yoars, rangivg up to the year 2075

Amuunts payable within one year relate to commitments
expiring as follows:

Within ene year

Between one and five years

Cver five yeurs

The flect leasing commitments of the Company include the balance of rental obliganoss under operating lesses i
espeet of 13 Boeing 747-400s, 3 Boeing 747-2005, 1 Bocing 747 ~104, 7 Boeing 767-300s, 4 Becing 757-200s,

1"

190
255

447

28
155

190

B0
193
475

748

22
32
26

80

Canag

i)

248
413
17

678

2353
11

245

145
313

25

18
17
J2

&7

1

167
209

a8

135

167

77
186
464

727

21
k|
25

77

19y

223
347

581

217

22%

64
139
5

4

18
E
12

64

20 Bocing 737-2(00s, 4 Boeing 737-400s, 2 DC-10-30s and 14 BAe ATP accrafi. In the cse of iest of these obligatons,
the Company may be required 1o meet a small share of any loss on reszle if options to extend the loase ase not exercieed

and has entered into related formgn exchange commitments, The Aeet loasing commitmants of the Group alse mdisde

1 Boeing 757-200, 12 Boeing 737-400s, 1 DHC-7 and 2 DHC-8s,

Four Boeing 767-300s otiginally on operating leases were purchased during the year endod 31 Magch 1994, finded by

mortgage loans,

The principal amount of the total property and equipment conunitments sbove relates to property fases.

20 Bk A e o] Ruos & Swwriac 199584
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14 INVBSTMENTS Provamons Cormny ot
£ midhon Fopuary Lados = gt s L 1994 tori

a GROUP

§  ASSOCIATED UNDERTAKINGS
Balarce 3t 1 Aprit 420 42 {1 3 448 ¥
Exchange mowements i1 (1) (1) (3 [ 15}
Additions &9 ;Y {51) BB a3
Repayments {13) (13)
Share of antributable resules (32) 32) {19
Goodwill (25} (25) (104§
Disposals (74
Reclassification {sce beows) 75 75 16
Balice at 31 March S18 98 {2 {67) 547 448
Equity comprises:
Cost of shares net of goodwill set off 564 451
Share of post-acquisition losses {48} (311

518 420

ii}

Durmng the year the Group has financed the losses of TAT European Aulines and Deuwsche BA and has therefore
had to make provisions against advances made to these companies. One humdred per cont of the louey of these twe
associsted undertakings has been included in these Lccounts.

TRADE INVESTMENTS Cun Provwiew Coronge sl
Shars Lawce Stres Lown 1994 19
Belance ac 1 April 111 5 (17} (1} 98 {7
Exchange movements 1 1 10
Additions 6 G 2
Dusposal (6] 1
Rechssification {see below) {86) 2 11 e
Balance at 31 March 26 2 28 28
TOTAL INVESTMENTS Anscsrod Thde
ety P
Listed 23
Unlssted 547 5

The listed mnvestent is histed on the London Stock Exchange and its market value at 31 March 1994 was £22 millven
{1993: £16 million).

i} ANALYSIS OF RECI ASSIFICATIONS Cowp fosd
ASSOCIATED UNDERTAKINGS
Cost of shares in Covia exchanged for interest in the Galileo Iitornational Parmership i ]
TRADE INVESTMENTS et s
Cost of shaves in Covia exchanged for intezest in the Galileo Internasions! Partnershup (75)
Cost of shares in The Plimsoll Line Linsited reclassefi od wnder subsidiary wndermking 11
(86)
Locns made to Brymon Airways Limited roclussified ondor subsidiary woxdermidngs (v}
Provisicn agaimt shares in The Plimsoll Lioe Limited seclasviffed uador subsidiary sndarialing 11
{7

P ooy 1 Aot Wiiees © Hovm Wosmy T8
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS manab
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14 INVESTMENTS wenivsody Lot Prooviaom
£ million Shoveg Luomy Sharos Lawwa
b COMPANY
i} SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS
Baluee at 1 April £99 274 {225) gl
Exchange movements 7
‘ Additons/reductions 164 {9 ) 5
: Repayments
. Reeclassification {see befowr) 210 (197) {11)
| Balance at 31 March 1,080 68 (317) {65)
l; fi) ASSOCIATED UNDERTAKINGS
‘; Balance at 1 April 3t 13 (28 (5}
I Additions/reductions (2) {1 5
i Repayments (13)
I Disposals 2 2
‘ Reclassification (see below) {9 9
! Balance at 31 March 18 (1%)
I
' i) TRADE INVESTMENTS
‘ Balance at 1 April a5 5 (17 {1
| Additions
‘i Dispasal m 1
' Reeclassification {ree below) {11} 2} 11
l Balance at 31 March 24 2
|
' TOTAL INVESTMENTS
B
Listed
Unlisted Pl

a8

Carpony sonl
) L,
668 134
7 12
89 58
B
2
766 668
n 3
2 11
{13)
5
11
22 20
6 2
*
26 2
Asoniitod Thadde
L ” e
23
3

The listed investment is listed on the London Stock Exchange and its market valoe at 31 March 1994 wos £33 nlllion

(1993: £16 mi"ion)

iv} ANALYSIS OF RECLASSIFICATIONS

SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS
Capinlisation of loans made to subsidiary undertakings as cost of investments
Cost »f shares in The Plimsoll Line Lintived previously shown under trade investments

Capitalisation of loans made to subsidiary undertakings as cost of invesments
Loans made to Brymon Airways Limited previously shown under trade investments

Provision against shares in The Plimsoll Line Limited previously shown under trade invessiments

ASSQCIATED UNDERTAKINGS

Cost of shates in The Galileo Company Limited combined with those of Covia
exchanged for interost in the Galllew Inwornastondd Partnevship

Provision against shares in The Galiieo Comprany Limweed released thereof

Coxt of shazes in The Pliosoll Line Limtvod vockissificd wnler subssidinry underariing

Loans mwde o Brywon Alrways Linutosd roclnwiied nedar sibsdlary smilosntilvg
Provision agains shares in The Plianeil Line Linticl reslamified aadar sabisidicy mwilocmildag

Crrspuny foid

199 |

L__y

{397}
(i1

2

Ll

g 282

The Group} principsd trvesovents of wibsidiary ondsrohing, ssaoted vodeittios o e ivekman s S9ad

o Prigee 38,
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15 INVESTMENTS 1IN THE PLIMSOLL LINE LIMITED

16

AND THE GALILEQ INTERNATIONAL PARTNERSHIP
With effect from 1 August 1993 The Plmuol! Lne Limuted, whose prizw ipal subsdury undertikng s Brymon
Awways Lmuted, became 4 wholliy-owned subsidtary undertaking of Brissh Asrways.

The combuanon of the Cowvia Partnenhap and The Galileo Company Limted was completed on 16 Seprember 1993
Braish Aurways mvestments 1n these two companes were exchanged for 3 14 63 per cont interest i the new entiry, the
Gahleo Internanonal Parmersiup.

The following table sets out the combined cost of the acquesions, the Far value of the wsets and habdines 2cqemvd
and the resulunt goodwill arsing which has been set of against Group reserves.

WNET ASSETS ANI) LIABILITIES ACQUIRED

Bk yulve Four vaplue Rewginzsion

L mulhom prpp— pr AT txprone Towd
Acquusition of The Plimsoll Line Lunuted 3 (5 {1 3
Group share of the net worth of the
Galileo International Parmership ol 60

63 (5) () 57
GOODWILL
Cash consideration for The Phmsoll Line Limated 8
Cost of investment in the Galilea Internationat Partnershyp 73
Legal and protewsional costs 1
Total cast of investments B2
Net asscts acquired 57
Goodwnll set off agranst reserves  (Nowe 27 25

Goodwill refating to The Plimsoll Line Lisnited is £11 million and the Gakleo Internausnal Partnership 5 £14 mufhon.

ANALYSIS OF THE NET OUTFLOW OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
IN RESPECT OF THE ACQUISITION OF THE PLIMSOLL LINE LiMITED

Cash consideration B
Bank overdmits assumed 3
MNet outflow of cash and cash equivalents it
INVESTMENT IN QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED

British Airways acquired the 25 per cent interest in Qantas Airways Lumited theeugh 1 wholly-ewned Australan
subsidiary undertaking on 10 March 1993. The goodwill arising from this acquisition and set offf agains soscrvas in
the British Airways Group i the year ended 31 March 1993 was caleulated based on the uditer) accounss of Qastzs
and Austrahan Airines Limited for the year ended 30t June 1992 which were the Iatest avatdable. The final goodwill
set off hay been derved from the audited accounts of the Qantas group for the year ended 30 June 1993,

The following tables set out the revised fair value of the asets 30d labihnes acquised and the rendine goadwil
adjustrent required,

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ACQUIRED Awwiring prioy
Book sohie rhupes e foty

o nqn ot ady b Tl
et amets at date of acquimbon 2 previously computed 1,168 215 %6
Adjnstments {167 1 {463
Ravisod et assets acquired 1.0 ™h 910
GOOIIWILL
Gotdwill a5 vopocted 2t 31 March 1993 o
Gooug shane of sdyustraets 11
Fevisod goodwl set off 1

Band Avvay 1Y et Vagun § S WP 2%
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SUMMARISED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
The publshed audited statements of operations for the Qaneas group foe the year ended 30 Jume 1993 and its balamor
sheet at that date, prepaved i accordance with Australian gencnally accepted accountmg pruscaples, s wnsgermssd hobow:

i

At im

Openating revenues 5505 2470
Operating prodit 259 123
Abgormal charges (446} (100
Interest payable (256) (8]
Loss before taxation Y (176}
Loss for the year {37 (163
Non current assets 6,933 3095
Net current liabilittes {463) (7
Long term habilities (4.440) 1.982)
Share capital {1,000 {446}
Reserves {1,000 (160

For the six months ended 31 December 1993 Qantas Airways Linitod announced an unsnditod o opoerating prodt of

A$101 milkion {£45 million) on operating revenues of A$3.463 million {£1.535 millicn). Group eperatng prodit 2ftor 1ax
auributable to members amounted to A$72 million {(£32 mitlioa).

The Steding equivalents For the smtements of operanons have been translased s the average exchange et for the yoar sisded 30 Juns
1943 and six months ended 31 December 1993; those for the balance shest have boen tmunedated ot the donng rate an shat deve

INVESTMENT IN USAir Group, Inc,

Under an agreetent made betwoen British Asrways and USAir in Janwary 1993, Braesh Airvaays undartosk te s

US5750 million i USAir convertible preferred stock over 3 five yoar poriod. The mvestusent was te oceor i tdioe ages il was
subject to a number of conditions, mcluding regulatory approval by the US Covarnment. Approwd of the flest sage, mmolwing the
vestment of US$300 million to give Dritish Airways 2 holdmg oquivalons to 24.6 per cetit of USAwt squicy share cnpith on an
undiluted basts and an initial code sharing agreement, was given by the US Seeromary for Toassporuaton ut Marth 1993, The
preferred stock so acquired by the Group is conversible at the Group's option at any wme on or afbor 21 Jeraary 1997 sme USAwr
comsnion stock. Until converted, the preferred stock is entitled to comulative guarterdy cash dividonds of sew:n oL Conk pot AR,

In order co puintain is holding equivalens 1o 24.6 per cent of USAI'S equity capital, the Group mvestod a furdvar US§100.7 sl
in convertible preferred stock in May 1993 pursuant to the oxorcise of pre-cimptive righu ralatsng to the weoe of new cotamen swek
by USAur, Thes new senes of convernble preferrod stock 1 entifiod to cunmdatve quartedly cash diwdends of 0.5 per osit over LIBOR,

The prescrit holdings of converuble preferrod stock entide the Group to 22 por cont of the currant voting rights 1 USAL. W wet
converted, the preferred stock 15 finally rodeomable in 3008. In oertain extromaly unlfhaly ciccusnsances, the Group cam be vowarad
to mvest 3 farther USS450 mifhon aver the next four yoars through two additional purchases of proforred seock 1w USAse

Under the above armangements, the Group's curres inserast in the results of USAir o haitod wo #6 xod profecad dr-vbeds, o) of
which have been recerved vo date, and anly such drmdends have been indludod 1z those accoums foe Mate 3.

The US Government has renewed Brrush Airways curtent code sharwg authotity for 65 destinations Ssr 3 Farther perod wf
12 munthe, bt has deferred action n Brcish Asrys applicaon to exmend these srmanigensanie Rt

SUMMARISED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The audired watement of operations of USAir fir the year endod 31 Docomber 1993 asd it bakisoe 4ot 2 shat dese,

prepered m accondince wich Usited Stases genorally accopwd acopumiing prmenplos, are susamarieod bl

ULt

1L Lin

Operating revenues 7R3 4782
Operating lom 75y ]
Net invevest payable and other expenses @74y (1%
Low before tanes and cumulutive effect of accoumting changes {350 {239
Net loss ] (ay
Preferrod dimdetsd reepumeem.ents {h ey
Net boss applicable to comron stecidethlors a1 M
Tl assens, Juss cwrpent Siebidvies % vt § 3.0 0%
Lorg-verm debu s redecrssbie prafurred sowol: .0 .00
Dheferrod crodie and shar Hebinies (Las4) (183 )
Thved mockivolilors” sgmicy Qi iy

8O st sowige % el Mgt & Amety 59989
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INVESTMENT IN 54w Gioup, [oc.  ssesead;

For she three wonths ended 31 March 1994 USArr ansounced an unaudusd operating dow of US§130 mileen {07 slvan)
on vperating revenues of USS1LE6 mathon ({1,134 nullion) and a a Joss of US$216 mllvon (145 malhon) appheabie o
common stockholders, and that it expucted a2 pre—tax Jous for the full yoar 10 31 December 1994 m ovces of die

US3550 miflion loss reported for 1993,

The Steding equmalents for the sttemnents of operations have been tramsleeed 1 the average exchange rates for the year ended
3 Drocember 1993 and the three months ended 31 March 1994; those for the balance shoet have bosn rranthiead ot the closmng
rare on that date.

In itx Annnsd Report on Form 10-K for the year ended 31 Diecember 1993 fikd with the US Secursics and Enchonge
Commasion, USAir made the following statement:

“Ulnless USAir is able to reduce its operating costs, present and increasing competition fom low cost, low. faze nrhnes m
USAir's markets could have a material adverse impact on USAir's cash position and, thercfore, 1 abdity to susare opeanons.
In March 1994, USAir announced that it had initiated discussions with the leadership of its umonzed employsas ragarding
wage reductions, improved productivity and other cost savings. The outcome of thase pogotiations 18 uncerean, but if mmely
agreements are not reached, the company may seck other restrucuring alternatives”

1f these negetiations are not suceessfully concluded, within the timescale winch the financial posinon of USA requores, then
the Directors believe that a provision for permanent diminution in value is Jikely to be roquinsd agamaer the prosont book wdue
of the Group’s investment of £275.3 millien (UU$$400.7 multion).

In March 1994 British Airways anpounced that it would not make any addinonal mvestiments 1 USAwr untl it hos boon
reassured of the ongoing viahility of the husiness,

STOCKS Cimngpr Clermpany
£ miition 1994 1993 1894 1991
Raw materials, consumables and work in progross 48 40 43 38

The replacement cost of stocks is considered to be niot
materially different from their balance sheet values,

DEBTORS

Trade debrors 805 726 T KL
Amounts owed by subadiary undertakings 87 79
Amounts owed by associated undertikings 10 i4 8 13
Other debrors 53 86 41 50
Deferred taxation  {Note 28) 4 4 4 4
Prepayments and accrued income 2it 179 184 163

1,083 1,009 1,093 1.015

Amotints due after more than one year included above are ot ugnificant.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Lo
1994 e o ot yowr 1993 Chunge m v yor 1992
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES AS SHOWN
IN THE BALANCE SHEET
Shott-term loans and deposits 1,194 90 495 211 e
Lew: benk and nther deposits with 2 matunty
date at inception of more than three musths (484) (386} 95} ad M1
Cash equivatents 710 M3 3v7 193 284
Cash at bank and in hand 32 (M 1 6 2
Overdrafts - wrsecured 1 () 1 {2
742 313 429 119 e
ANALYSIS OF CHANGES DURING THE YEAR g
{9sd i ]
Balomct at 1 April 4729 Iy
Mot cash indlow 313 iie
Bulsces x 31 Mzolk k) ape
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CREDITORS: AMOUNTS PALLING DURB WITHIN

QONE YEBAR Cormuge Loy
£ milon 1994 199} L0 e o]
Loans, finance leases and hite purchase arrangements
Bank and other loans B6 21 86 20
Finance leases 48 63 ” 39
Hire purchase armmgements 66 41 66 41
200 125 19% 120
Overdrafis - unsecured 1
Trade creditors 783 723 745 457
Amounts owed to subsidiary undereakings 147 145
Amounts owed 1o associared underrakings 1 1
Other crc:li:ors ¥ - ]
Otlier ereditors g’ i ;7] 85
Corporate taxation Y (L 8! 11
Other taxation and social security 32 30] 31 3oy
130 139 121 126
Dividends payable 76 J6 76 556
Accruals and deferred income r ,
Sales in adwarce of carriage 618 685 572 658
Acruals and deferred income 121 121 Bo l 23
o -
739 805 658 741
1,928 1,851 1,946 LA44
BORROWINGS AND OTHER CREDITORS
Loans, finance leases and hire purchase arrangements
Bank and other loans 1,638 1,447 1,303 1,116
Finance leases 451 J41 437 549
Hire purchase arrangements 1,356 867 1,316 867
Loans from substdiary undertakings 641 640
3,405 2,855 3,697 3163
Accruals and deferred income k1 44 27 40
344 2,899 374 2,203
CONVERTIBLE CAPITAL BONDS 2005 Crowp
%94 1993
315 30

The terms of the 9.75 per cent Convertible Capital Bonds allow the holders so convert it British Ascweys Pl
onlinary shares during the period June 1993 to 2005 on the basis of one ordinary share for sach £2.34 fadustod for
the cffect of the 1993 rights issue) of Bonds held. On 15 june 1993, the date of the firx oppostunicy for comsrsbon
1,615,949 ardinary shares were issued in exchangs for 3,825,837 Bones. The torms also provide that o srtaity in
2005 the Company may require remaining bandholders to comvert their Bonds 1nto ardinry shurss of the Conmpany
which would be sold on therr biehalf. If the procceds of such a sale are low than dhe iswe prive of the Donds dee

Company has 10 fund ary deficit from its ewn resources. Fall convorsion of the somaining DVords i roauite the
issuc of » *5,209,193 ordinary shares.

Them surket dosmg prices of the Bonds 2nd the ertiinary shares at 31 March 1994 a1 quoted in the Loudon Sedk
Bxc.sange Daily Official List were 199.5p and 404p cach reypectively.

Beviki Aoyt Ple Aviiivit Wigprt & ivwwiicc 1995404



24 LOANS, PINANCE LEASES AND
HIRE PURCHASE ARRANGEMBEINTS

£ vlien

a  TOTAL LOANS, FINANCE LEASES AND
HIRE PURCHASE ARRANGEMENTS

Loans
Bank ~ Dentsche My .
- French Frane
~ US Doltar
- Srerling
Brire-sterling rotes
Other = Detitsche Mark
- US Dollar
- Sterling

Leans from subsidiary undertakings - US Dollar
~ Sterling

Finance leases - US Dollar

- Sterling

Hire purchase arrangements - Japanese Yen

- LIS Dollar
Comprising:
Bank loans
Repayable wholly within fiee years
Repayable ir = nie or in part after five years

Other loans, finance fease and hire purchase armngements

Repayable wholly within _five years
Repayable in whole or in part after five years

Crugp Crmpiry
1994 1981 1994 fod 4
DM75:n ! DM73m DM753m zm?‘im
FR40m RSO
USS1,360m | | LISA989mi] USS1,360m] | (ASSO8Hm
£139m Lidtm L£75m L6m
1,088 814 1,023 769
300 300 300 300

DaMim

USS400m | | USH00m
Lhbm L67m A66m . g;ﬂm ‘
336 334 66 67
US3400m] [ [JS§400m
£3Mm L375m
641 640
| T USS35m US335m! 1
L£475m £60am) | ga60m| | £soom
459 604 484 599
¥53,649m ¥38,067m|] ¥53,649myi | ¥i38,06Hm
US$1,525m | [ USS1,035m{|{USS1,525m] |USS1,035m
1,382 908 1,382 908
3,605 2,580 3,896 3,283
188 129 188 129
990 705 835 640
1,088 834 1,623 789
417 o2) 314 357
2,100 1,684 2,559 2,157
2,517 2,146 2,873 2.514
3,605 2,980 3,896 3,283

Bank and other loans are repayable up to the yoar 2052, The bank loans of US$1,360 miliion indlude USSE157 idlion seeured on 2 Doons
7474005, & Bocuyg 767-300s and 16 Boctng 737-40(k {1993: USEE?9 million seciired on 2 Bocing 747-400s, 2 Dosing 76730 and 15 Boclujy
137-4005). The bank lrans of £139 million tnclude £120 million secured on 1 Boeing 737-404, 1 Bocing 767306 and 1 Bookny, F47-400
(£993: £120 milhon secured on 1 Boang 737-400. 1 Bocing 767-300 and 1 Docing 747-400). Of this amwount, £56 milkion relates 1o the
Company secured on [ Bocing 737-400 and | Bocing 767-200 {1993: £56 million securcd on | Bosing 737400 and | Boeing 767300

b INCIDENCE OF REPAYMENTS

Crovs ol
Hire purihiise
Bonk jeene Other feaws Brance lewex ener 1994 1999
INSTALMENTS FALLING DUE:
Within ene year 86 43 ]
After mere than enc year
Betsween enie and fuwo years 104] | 43 75 222 121]
Batween two and five yoars 367 184 363 943 &’6‘7
I five yous or more 748’ L 29 242 ot 3,946,
1.002 636 451 1,314 3,408
el 1994 1088 656 49 1,382 3,605
Toud 1893 434 634 6 e 2,350
Analysiy of wes) 1994
Trlvish Advways Phe 1,023 M, 484 §.A48E 3,455 248
v 15 a88 2

Sebsidiary uhdentkdngs &5
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4 LOANS, PINANCE LEASES AND

HIRE PURCHASE ARRANGEMENTS pnascd S Cowep it (
\ Bank and  and Juoe pombone
| L million st nang sevarumont o4 L
Ti ©  ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN BORROWINGS
i DURING THE YEBAR 1
!,i Balnce at 1 April 1,468 1,512 2,980 1,508
F Assuincd from subsidiary undertakings acquired during the year 17 17 15 '
: New loans raised 161 5 210 735
Logns, finance Jeases and hire purchase armngements undertaken ,
to finance the acquisition of ireraft 200 443 643 313 i
Repayment of amsounts borrowed {129 {116) 239) (a2 !
: Farly termination of Snance Jeases 7% {78) 1
| Effect of exchange rate changes 18 54 72 ™
? Balence at 31 March 1724 1,881 3,605 2,980

d [(NTEREST RATE AGREEMENTS
To reduce mterest rate risk, British Airways has entered into single currency interest rate swap artangsents cffecringly '
1o change the interest payable elements of parts of its undedying Joan and lease obligations from varisble to fived rates, |
Accordingly, while the Group is exposed to market risk to the extent that receipts and payments wader interest me
agrecnents are alfected hy narket inserest rates from time o time, any such fluctuadions will be offiet by chamgms 1o

|
interest an.? interest-related payments made on variable rate loan and leuse obligations. Hritish Alrways accounts for *L
interest wauz sgreements as hedges. ,

|

Qutstanding single cutrency interest mate swap agreements are summarisod u follows:

Inseront potea 'r

Notiorol prircipe? balemee Tormnation dstet Pl papuble l

At 31 March 1994 ;

US Dollas USS630m 2000 - 2003 B.AY - Y% :

: Sterling £100m 1994-1997  5.5% - 10.0% |

At 31 March 1993 ‘

US Dollar US$639m 2000 - 2003 8 4% - 9.9% q

1 Steding « £,100m 1994 - 1997 D.5% - 10.0% ;

‘; In addition British Airways lias entered into cross currency interest tate swaps in relation to spracific bosrowdngs, }
] involving tha exchange of interest payments in one specificd currency for interast roceipts #+; unother specificd cutrency. “B

K Qutstanding cross curcency interest mte swmp agroements, rosulting ia the following inteiest rates |

payable (comprising both fixed and variable vates), nre: k

Inicrent ol !

Notsond! principal balance Terminadien dased Papoble '

At 31 March 1994 '

Sterling i 83m 1997 - 1998 5.2% - 10.2%
At 31 Marh 1993 !
Swerling AL83m 1997 « 1998 6.0% - J0.3% i

!

E

|

t

t
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25 PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES

Balene: 2¢ prgfic and o
£ wition 1 Apell J—
Pensions and smilar obligations 24
Pose-retirement medica! benefirs 15
Litigation provision {Nete 31 22
Other 8
Total 31 March 1994 69 4
Total 31 March 1993 49 5

26 SHARE CAPITAL
Number of shares

ORDINARY SHARES OF 25p EACH 0%d
AUTHORISED
At 1 April 1,068,000
Increase 240,000
At 31 March 1,308,000
ALLOTTED, CALLED UP AND FULLY PAID
At 1 April 741,88
Rights issue 185,486
Convegsion of Converdble Capital Bonds 1,616
Exercise of options under Employee Share Option Schemes 25,031
At 31 March 954,019

1994

£ enillion

267
60

327

185
46
1

7

239

Crniae wrd Covepong

Prosiina Boalanisr ot
apphed 31 Mok

&) 21

17

2

) 6

) 66

{146) 69
Group and Compeny

1993

Nuber gf dhaoos

(7] £ mikion
1,068,000 267
1,068,600 267
727,537 182
14,34% 3
741,886 185

At the Jast annual general meeting the authorised sharc capital of the Company was increased by £60 million with the

creation of 240 million new ordinary shares of 25p each,

On 11 June 1993, by way of a rights issue announced in May 1993, 185,485,636 ordinary shares wore fsned at a price
of 245p per share on the basis of one ordinary share for every four held.

On 15 June 1993, the date of the first opportunity for conversion, 1,615,949 ordinary shares were wised 1n exxchange
for 3,825,837 Convertible Capital Bonds on the basis of one ordinary share for every 2.34 Bonds beld, Pull sonversion

of alf remaining Bonds would require the issne of 145,209,193 ondinary shares,

SHARE OPTIONS
*umber of shares 000

QOu vandmg - { Aprit

Grai.ed in the year ~ mainly SAYE share option schame 1993
Restazed 1o take zccount of the boaus element of the rights issue
Exercised during the yer-

Expuvl/eanceil-2

At 31 March

Date exercisable
Price per share
Price mngs of optiens .xercised during the yvar

Cresp ol Coampany
1994 1293
32,308 47,453
27,67¢ 1,59¢
1,367
Q5,01) (14,349
1909) (2,389
35,405 32,308

1994 - 2003 1993 - 2002
129p - 397p  133p . 290
129p - 203p 13%p - 224.5p

T Boerdee prives of eptions gravited prior b 11 futie 1993 Jeave boert adfvisted to take tato popownt the borr sloroiet

of the eighty laovce anmoumeed in Muy 1593,

S5 Aoy o Aot ot 8 Aneuss 0990 35
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27 RBSERVES

Yiee pommiim
& illon ey
GROUP
Bulance at 1 April 30
Renined profit for the year
Teansfers relating w revalued s
Bxchange sdjustments
Goodwill ret off  free befow)
Share premium arising from issue of
ordinary share capital
(after charging the cost of the rights issue) 427

Bulance at 31 March A37

Group profit and loss account includes cumulative
petained losses of /548 million (1993: £31 mullion)
in respect of associated undertakings.

GOODWILL

Investment in ‘The Plirnsoll Line Limitcd (Note 13)
Investnent in the Galileo Tnternatioml
Parmership (Note 13}

Investment in Qantas Airways Limited

{1994 — addidonal goodwilt set off) {Noze 16}
Acquisition of assets and liabilities of

Davies & Newman Holdings PLC

Tovestment in TAT European Airines S.A.

Guodwill set off

Cumulative goodwill set off against reserves
at 31 March 1994 was £555 miliion
(1993; 517 million;.

COMPANY

Balance at 1 April 30
Retained profit for the year

Transfers relating to revalued awets

Exchange adjusunents

Share premium arising from issue of

ordinary share capital

(after charging the cost of the rights isuc) 427

Balance at 31 March 457

28 DEFERRED TAXATION per sw News 10 ad 19}

Deferred taxation comprises:

Acoclenated capital allowances and other timing differences
Adwance sorponrtion &x

Tirmang differreices in respoct of proposty valuations

If fall provision for doférrad toadon at 33 per cent

{1993; 33 put cam) had been sade, the followiag ameunts
would have been requiced a¢ 3§ March:

Anceleered capeal alioremacer, los wneclicwed losses
Aulmnoe aonpicition B

Othor virdng difbtonc et

“Tinsing diffsrences in rospoct of property wilwmtions

Mashcumen Prghs st
revne Joor Sanpuinr
45 554
150

41-) i8
{12

{36

27 1,104
(1)

{14

(11}

(36

40 1,034
131

a7n 17
a1

23 1151
Gy

1994 1983
12 12
(1% (1%
2 2
4) el
617 52
(1% )
(33 )
2 F
568 oS54

a1
4
(an

(6

1094
131

{24)

427
1,681

1994

12
o8
2

4

8

169

8
835

1149

1,028
59

ek

1,094

g

it

} 4
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2% DIRECTORS' AND OFFICERS' LOANS AND TRANSACTIONS

Ne loans or crodit trusactyons, were outscndung with Duncion or Officens of the Compony 2t the end of e wear winck
nied o be duclosed 1 accondnce with the voquirmments of Schedule 6 1o the Compames Act {5

30 PENSION COSTS
Beirish Avrvears aperztes vwo priscapal defined benefit pencion schemes i the UK, the Aseways Peaseon Scheme (APS),
which » closed to new members, and the New Awrways Ponmon Scheme (NAPS) of whch all new parmancat srmplowoss
over th age of 18 employed by the Company and certan subsdeary vadermiongs i the UK muy bovotme meembocs The
assets of these schemes are held in seporate tutee-admunistered furds.
Benefis provided under A< are basod on final average penatonable pay and, for dwe mayority of members, are solyect
wiereases i line with the Rewil Price Index. Thowe provided under NAPS are basod o fimal averape potiomable pey roduced

by an amount equivalent 5o one and a half umes the Government’s lower carmngs tunn and are sulyect 1o Retail Price Index
increaies up to a maxamum of five per cent in any one year.

Most employzes engaged outside the UK are covered by appropriate local arrangemena

Employees” contributions range from 5.75 per cent to 8.5 per cens of full pensionable pay m APS and from 3 75 par comt tu
6.5 per cent of full pennonable pay less one and 2 half times the lower earmings bt an NAPS.

The latest actuarnl valuations of APS and NAPS were made 2 at 31 March 1992 by an independent firm of qualhed artuaries,
R.Watson & Sons, using the agtamed age methed for APS and the projected veur method for NAPS These showed shat ne farthee
employers” contnibutions were required in respect of APS whik for NAPS an employers’ contribution eqaal 1o an avetape of twe
umes the employee’s contribution for the year 1 Aprd 1993 to 31 March 1994 (twe times the employoe’s contribaimon for
1992-93) was appropriate. The next vatuztions of the two schemes wall be carned out as 2t 31 March 1995, .

Ly

£ milhon 114 1793
All zmounts recognised s costs were either funded or paid | ectly,
Employers’ contribunons {calcvlated as set out abowe for APS and NAPS)
charged in the accounts were.
Airways Pension Scheme
New Ainways Pensien Scheme 44 42
Qhhter pension schemes and provident funds = malnly outside the United Kingdom 10 10

54 52

At the date of the actuarial valuation the markes vatues of the assets of APS and NAPS amoanted 1o (3,825 million and
£727 million vespeetivele. The value of the asven represented 112 per cent (APS) and 105 pex cont (NAPS) of the value of the
benefies thar had acerued to members after allowing for asumed increases in carnings. In the case of APS, the actwaria] walue
of the asers together with furure contributions from employess was sufficient to cover both past and futitse service habelimos,
In the case of NIAPS, the actwarial value of the assets togother with future conrfbutions from cmployeer was sufficient to
caver past service lizbilities and some future service habilities. The smployer comribanon is intanded 1o make op the baknce
of future service lisbilitses. The principal sssumptions used in the actuarial valnation woee that, over the Jong serm, the atinusd
return on invessments would be 2.5 per ceat higher than the annual increase in carmings and 4 5 per cont highor thwo anmuat
increases in dividends. Annuozl pension increases, over the long torm, were zssumed for APS 10 be at the wne Jevel s divadend
incresses and for NAFS at a level one per cent Jower,

Employers’ coniributiens in respect of owerseas employces have been determined m 2ccordance with best local practice.

31 LITIGATION

% A number of legal cans have been mede agait the Company by Virgin Atdantic Asrways Lumited. Huvia; sopand 10 legel
advice received, and in all the tircumstances, the Directors zxe of the opinion that these clatms will niot giwe rise o lebdite
which will in the aggrepate buve a smatecial offect on these scooums

b There ave a mumber of further sdentified logal and othor claims whiclh emanase from witsrnasonal axdine oprutions and vther
actiwities of the Group for which the Directors hawe mede what they balicve w appropriste provision

¢ [n sddimon, experience wth htigrtion »od ragulation hat led the Dirscions %0 conchude th it is prodest i comtinue w corry
foreasd £22 million of a provision made in prior years,

32 CONTINGENCIES Coony Coogprrey
1994 L iy P L]
Contingent Habidines, inchuling guarantes given to bonks 16b 135 is 113

Cruazantzes givan in tespect of the Cowrveriilide Capital Bonds

iswned by 1 wabsidiary wnderaking aod botrownags by

subsinlinry and ancciemd wnderdonms 584 il
166 133 B o2

33 BVENTS AFTER BALANCEH SHEET DASR
O 15 My 18%4, Brickli Aireraps sownicod the rerin’olog 49 sor et smerbokitng i Ak Milles Toowd Promestone L
sogotliar widh » porgpomal Rocwoe v wee dhve Adc Mas, o s miios o wo wrpuenne thee e Boiies sehrnme.
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PRINCXPAL INVESTMENTS
At 3t March 1994

SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS

Principal subsidiary undectakings are wholly-owned eecepe where indicated.

Air Miles Teavel Promotions Lud*
{51 per cent of erdinary shares sunied) free Note 33 to the acrourits)
Bedford Associates Inc
Brinir Acquisition Cotp Ine*
L Bridsh Airways Associated Companies Lid*
| British Airways Australia {(Holdings) Pty Led*
£ British Airways Capita] Ltd*
! (39 per cont of fornders® shares ouned)
British Airways (Buropean Opera.ons at Gatwick) Led*
British Aitways Finance BV¥*
! British Airways Holidays Lid*
British Airways Investments (Australia) Pey Lid*
British Airways Maintenance Cardiff Lud*
British Airways Regional Lrd*
Brinsh Asia Airways Ltd*
Caledonian Afrways Ltd
Chartridge Centre Lid*
Dreutsche BA Holding GmbH*
Speedbird Insurance Company Lud*
The Plimsoll Line Lrd* (holding company of Brymort Ainways Lid}
Travel Auromation Services Lid* (trading as Galtleo UK)

ASSOCIATED UNDERTAKINGS

Percentoge of

squizy pumod

Air Russia* 310

Concorde International Travel Pey Lud 50.0

Deutsche BA Lufifahrigesellschaft mbi 49.0

Euro-Hnb (Birmingham) Lid* 214

GB Airways (Holdings) Led 49.0

Galileo Internatione} Partmesskip 14.6

. Qantas Airways Ld 5.0

. TAT Buropean Airlines $.A* 49.9

' World Aviation Systems (Australia) Pey Lid 50.0

; UISAir Group, Inc, fsee Note 17 to the asounts}
. TRADE INVESTMENTS

i Ferenige of

! npuity swned

! Hogg Robinson ple* 124

| Ruby Aircraft Leasing and Trading Lid* 19.3

. Sapphire Aireraft Leasing and Trading Led* 19.3

*Qwned diroctly by British Airways Plc

Cousmtey of ryauputetion

and rpaton

Prnmpal anvivios and prosigpal apaine
Specialist camputer resorwation software UsA
Helding company USA
Holding company Bngland
Holding coenpany Avmedia
Alrline finance Jemey
Airline operations Boylarmd
Airline finance Motherlands
Package holidays Bapland
Holding coinpany Ausralia
Aircraft maintanance Baglnd
Air trave services Bngland
Adr truvel services Bngland
Airline operations Bngland
Addline trave] training services Bngland
Holding company Gopmany
Airline jnsurance Bamauda
Holding company Tangland
Computer rescrvations systeims Bagland
Cuinivy of insiporition

Aidine oporations Pursia
"Travel services Aunzair
Airline operations Gurimany
Airport terminal services Bngland
Airline oporations Jorsey
Computer rescrvations systenis USA
Arline opsrations Auspilia
Alrline opetation Pranae
Aitline marketing An g
Airhne oporations LSA
Cowrvicy of Svurporstion

Principsl wiividics ond panspdl wpcrbion
Fraved serviees Proghamad
Alvoralt Joating Tinglasnd




UNITED STATES GENERALLY ACCEPTED
ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES (US GAAP) INFORMATION

US GAAP ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
The Anancal sutements are prepared in sccardance with accountng poans iples generaliv acceped 1n the Unmed
Rangdom which differ 1a certun respects from those gererally accepted 1n the Unted Seates The sgmafic ant daflewrm e
are described below

3 Deferred taxaton  Brwsh Ascways provides for deferred taxanon using the habubey method on all mzveral nomng
differences to the extens that it 1 probable that the habxhines will crystalisse 1n the foresecable fiture Under US GAAR
as set out i Statement of Financil Accounnng Standards (FAS) No 109 "Accounnng for Tncome Taxes', whach she
Group adopted on  April 1993, deferred txanon 1 generally provided on a full halaluy baw The comalaove effect
of the change at that date, from FAS 96 to FAS 1/W, was nat sigmficant,

b Goodun! Briush Awrways sets off goodwill ansng on consolidation directly aggaumst retained carmings. Under US
GAAP, jjoodwill ansing on consolidation 15 amortised over 1tx usefil bfe, For the purposes of determuming the
differonces between UK GAAP and US GAAP, the expected useful ife of goodwall has been tken 1o be 40 vears.

¢ rroperty and fleet valuation Under US GAAD, tngible assets must be stated at cost less accumulated deprecianan 10
the financal statements. The valuation of properties at 31 March 1984 and fleet at 31 March 1988 weorporated by
British Airways i 1ts financial statements would not therefore have been included in financial statements preparsd 1n
accordance with US GAAP and the subsequent charges for deprecranon would have been correspondmply lower
When such assets are sold, however, any revaluation surplus thus realised would be reflected 1 income.

d  Purchase accounting  Under US GAAP, as set out 1n FAS 109, a deferred tax Labuliy 15 recogmised for the s offects of
differences between the assigned fair values and tax hases of assets acquired  whereas, under UK GAAP no such habiliey
1s recognised. As a result of recognising such a deferred tax habality the amount of gowdwill ansing on consolydaton

mncreases correspondingly. Under US GAAR, the deferred tax hability would be amortised over the same period as the
assers to which 1t relaces,

¢ Forwand exchange contracts Under US GAAP, the notional gamn or loss ansing on the translanion of certain outstanding
foreign currency forward exchange contracts ac each balance sheet date, at the forward rates of exchange ruling at that
date, would have been imcluded in the determination of net income. Briush Asrways does not take account of such
notional gains and losses,

f Dividends Under UK GAAP, dividends are recorded in the finaneia] statements for the perod 1o wlich the dvdend
relates, Under US GAAP, the habihty for diwidends is recorded 1 the financial statements when declared. The
proposed fimad dividend ar 31 March 1994, and the related advance corporanon wx, would not therefore be meluded
1 the financial statements for 1994 prepared n accordance with US GAAR

g Foraign purency trslation Arrcralt wlach are financed 1 whole or 1n part in foreign currency; ewthar by Joans, finance
lease obligations or hire purchase armngements, are reganded together with the related habihnies 26 2 separate group of
assets and labilities and accounted for 1n foreign currency. The amounts in foreign currency are translated mto Sterling
at rates ruling 3¢ the balance sheer date and the net differences ariang from the translation of treeaf costs and relased
foreign currency loans are taken to retained carnings, Under US GAAT, the cost of these arcralt would be fixed in
Sterling at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the original acquisinon, lezse or hure purchase and the «xchange
gan or Joss on the related foreign currency loans would be teflected 1n income

h  Gains on sale and leaseback innuactions  Uinder UK GAAP, gans ansing on sale and leaseback transacmions are recogmised
as part of income to the extent that the sale procecds do not exceed the fair value of the assets concerned. Gaine arming
on the portion of the sale proceeds which exveed the far value are deferd and amortised over the munn um lesse

term. Under US GAAT, the total gans, including any realised revaluation gawm, would be deferred 10 ful) und
amortsed over the mimimum Jease term,

v Post-renvoment medieal benefit obligations  Whch effect from 1 April 1992 Britsh Arrways has accounted for s obligationt
in tespect of post-retirenient medical benefits in accordance with UK Urgent Inues Task Force Abstract &, whach
accords with FAS 106 *Employers” Accounang for Postreurement Benwfits Other Than Penstons® Under UK GAAR
the cumulatve cffect of this change at that date was dealt wath as an adjusment to opermng retasned carruings =t
1 Aprid 1992, Under US GAAR this wdiustinent would have been dealt wath as 2 cumulative offeet o vhange m medhnd
of accounnng :n the detertmnanon of net income for the year ended 31 Manch 1993,

1 Pension costs Under US GAAP, iz cont of providmg penstons 1s aunbuted to periads of service s accordan. ¢ wth the
benetit formulae underlying the pemsion plans. The resukant projected benefit oldastion 1 nwtchod agonk the cwrren
value of the underdlying plan assets and unrecogrised actuarial gans and losses 1 determanng the pensson con or crodit
for the year. The nes peniodic penstun costs for these plans for the wear ended 31 March 1994 amounted to (44 mllion
{1993: [42 mllion) under UK GAAP compated with an estimated cont of S111 mithon (1993, £114 millern)
uarder FAS 87 *Employers' Accounting for Pensions”. The resuliant increase m operating cows of L67 millson
{(1993: £72 muthon), net of retated deferred tax of £22 million {1973; £24 mallion}, would reduce et scome weher
US GAAP by £45 rmihon (1993: £48 mallton), and would be reflected mn the consolidnied bulance shreet 23 an
ddieron to acerved pension costs.

The esurmated effece of the sgmlicant sdustments wo net ncome and to sharcholders” cquerty wiuch would be rcapced
W US GAAP were to be apphed iastead of UK GAAP s smmenarmed on Pages 47 xod 4 1
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NET INCOME UNDER US GAATP

UNITED STATES GENERALLY ACCEPTEHED
ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES {US GAAP) INFOGRMATION

Cong
For tht yowr ondnd 31 Manh 1994 3994 Tt P pro
3§ wifbon
Profit for the year as reported in the -
Group profit and loss account 286 178 423 26
Esamated adjustments:
Depreciztion
Croodunll (14} 1104 (21) ift5
Fleet 45 31 67 47
Property 1 1 2 2
Pension costs (67) 2 99 109}
Exchange gains/{losses)
Arising on trnsiation of aiveraft relase? lvants (29) 1133 (43) 1.
Relating to revaluation of forward exchange (ontrarts {2} 3 {3 \
Profit on disposal of tangible fixed assets
Ansing on disposal of revalited aircraft 1 2 2 3
dAnising on disposal of revalued property 4 G
Arising on sale and leaseback transactions 17 2 25 2
Deferred taxation on 1624 (144) "y,
(141) 1238 (208) 1159;
Estimated net income/(Joss) befo'e cumalative effect of change
in 2ccounting principle as adjusted to accord with US GAAP 145 i5d) 215 L
Estimated cumulative effect on priot vears of adopting FAS 11 115 121
Estimated net income/{loss) as adjusted to accord with US GAAR 145 (751 215 11134
G
Net income/(loss) per Ordinary Share as so adjusted™
Pomary
Income/(loss) before cumnlative effect of change in accounting principle 15.9 (.9 2).5 ti1 9
Cumulative effect on prior years of adoptng FAS 106 4.9 2w
15.9 19.8) 23.5 (14 ¥
Fuily dituted
Income/floss) before aumulanive effect of change in accounting principle 15.6 3.7} 23.1 5t
Cumnlative effect ont prior years of adopting FAS 106 118 124
15.6 {5.3 2241 120
Net income/(loss) per American Depositary Shere a5 so adjusted*
Primary
Income /floss} before cumnlative effect of change in aounting principle 159 (79) 235 [ ¥L]]
Cumulative cffect onr prisr years of adopting FAS 106 (119 129
159 198; 238 14K,
Fully diluted
Tncome /floss) before munulative effect of change s asounting principle 156 137 b1 | 130
Cumulative effect o prior years of adopting EAS 106 (16 2%t
156 {53 251 50

Tharsheoons e L3 = $1A8  £1 =81 51

*Net loss pee share for the year ended 31 March 1993 has hovn adlfustod s twke amount of e bonss chemmerst of

the rghte wiie annowned in May 1993,
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SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY UNDER US GAAP

(#
e 1T M 1 1994 1993 1] i
£ wllom 1 eidbon
Sharcholders” equity as reporzed in the consolidated baluce sheet 1,827 1.214 2,704 1,833
Estrmated adjustments:
Inungible asets
Coodusill 1%6 474 734 16
Tangible assets
Fleet (203} {220/ (300) (332
Preperty {6) 53] " 17
Current assets
Deferred gans on forward exchunge contracts 1 3 2 5
Current Labilities
Proposed dividend 76 112
Pension casts acornials {(74) 7 (109) (1
Deftrred income - sale and leayeback (24) (22) (36) {33
Long-term lizbilines
Deferred income - sale and leaseback {20} (39 (30) [517]
Provisions for liabilities and charges
Deferred taxation {505) {408} (747) f616)
(259) 1230 (383} 347
Estimated sharcholders” equaty as adjusted to
accoru with US GAAP 1,568 984 2321 1,486

Transladion rate 1 2 S1.48 L1 =2$1.51
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FIVE YEAR SUMMARIES
Fow sing ot yowin owded 11 Suncke 14+

GROUP PROFIT A'WD LOSS ACCOQUNT

Ivsy 1y 1) 1wt 1994 fovi 1
{ mallon P 5J sundie

TURNQVER 4838 49T 5224 5%k 6303 £40% 9,328
Openiting expenditure (4454 (180 4,88 5256 (5,807) T3Tr (B.594)
OPERATING PROFIT 184 47 144 3 496 468 734
Income from interest 1n associated undertakings 124 ] 1™ {11} LY 116)
Other ncome and charges +1ey & 1™ 112 {32) 118 (48)
{Loss)/profit on disposal of fixed asscts 45 160 A4 15 5 23 [¢)]
Profit on sale of engine overhaul busmess 149
Net interest payable 157y 129} 1884 (1 (147 t1ed (218)
Profit before taxation 3435 130 434 18% 391 279 445
Taxation and minority interests {99) 135 39 [ {15} i1ty {22}
Profit for the year 246 o5 395 178 286 269 423
Dividends {64y 164 74} % (106) W1 (157
Rewuned profic for the year 182 31 221 59 180 15 266

GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS OF GROUP
TURNOVER ANI} OPERATING PROFIT

Tncheusn mte 4 1281 51 L19S1.43
Following the adoption of Financial Reporting Standard 3 1n 1993, amounts for prior years have been acjustd 25 cordungly

By aots o devderityins
A, milkon 19%) 1991 199> 1991 19%
TURNOVER
Europe 1,825 1,950 2,064 2,21 2,438
The Americas 1,619 1,615 1645 1,709 2,029
Africa 356
Africa, Middle Eagt and Tndian sub-continent Sop 665 e 200
Middi: East, Far East and Australasia 1,038
Far Ease an¢h Australasia 782 850 852 939
4,838 4,937 5,224 5,566 6,308
OPERATING PROFIT/LOSS)
Europe 3 {10 20 30 69
Tite Americas 249 123 119 87 129
Africa 52
Africa, Middle East and Indian sub-continent 13 11¢ 1314 203
Middle Easr, Far East and Australasia 30
Far East and Australasia i1 Ao iy 9%
354 ToT* 344 31 496

I 1992, the Direvtors changed the analyws of geographucal s=gments to bring thern b hae with Brateds Acrwave
operationial management structure and the figures for 1991 were adjusted accondumel.

*in 1991, sxceptional charges o€ £120 mullion (comprising rosts associased with employee reductions. of L93 newlbeon
and the write down to esuntated reaksable vikic of TriStir mreraf sirplus to mywirrmens o 27 sl are root

allecable by geographical regaon,
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GROUP BALANCE SHEET

£ volkun o 1991 e 1994 1

Faxed asscs

Tinygpible aztets 2,464 313 3472 4,230 4,648

Tvestrtents 108 108 93 346 575

2,572 3,242 3,565 4,776 5,223

Current assets CTaese | 1,057 1687, 1,577 2,357

Creduors: amounts flling due within one year I 14,816 ' {1,600, 4 (1.'«_’_(!6“ . 1851y - (;.92_89‘

Net current assets/ (liabihinies) 321 {343 1% 274} 429

Total assets less cucrene liabilioes 2,051 2,699 3,546 4,502 5,652

Creditors: amounts falling due after more

than one vear (1,075} (1,686) i2,.208) 13,219 {3,759)

Provisions for habikues and charges 164 {551 (541 1691 (66)
912 958 1,284 1,214 1,827

Capital and reserves

Called up share capital 180 180 182 188 239

Reserves 732 778 1,102 1,029 1,588
912 958 1.284 1244 1,827

Following the adoption of Financial Reporting Standard 4 in 1994 the Convertible Caputa) Bonds have been

reclassified wthin creditors falling due after more than one year and corresponding amouns have been restated,
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GROUP CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FIVEF YEAR SUMMARIES  wma

o0 Noe: By youmt ruded 11 Mo 13

£ mlan 1¥w? 1vv¥t T RS WH
NET CASH INFLOW FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES “2K 29 Fut A2y 736
RETURNS OIN INVESTMENTS
AND SERVICING OF FINANCE e . . o ,
Interest recerved 291 62 4v *h 62
Intertst paud on bank and other Youans 89 29 981 ifta) (133)
Interest pard on finance leases and ' Ii ‘
ite purchase arrangements ! 1224 | (33 {5 18 (B8},
USAor preferred steck dividend receved . i i ‘ 3 15
Dividends recerved from trade investments ; 4 3 1] A4 2
Dvidends pad 158)) 1641 1631, ~hy {B6)
Net cash outflow from returns on investments
and servicing of finance 1136} (121 11644 t1aY, {228)
TAXATION
UK corporanon tax pasl 1944 1109 W1 1318, {21)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES e ety me e ey s - . .
Tangble fixed assets purchased for cash 1619 | 1813 A W:;: . P8 (3209
Refund of progress payments ; 268§ 189 | ¢ 158 | > 14 -
Purchase of interests in assocated undertakigs | 1oy ! (o5 16y 153 (49
Loans made to associated underaakings ; i1 )! ' (3n ; 1424 (57]:
Purchase of interests in trade investments {7 :-: 3 i y
Net outtlow of cash and cash equivalents ! [ ' ! : f
1 respect of the purchase of i { ! } ; i |
subsidhary wndertakings 1 ih (5, f fIUrE {11y
Sale of tangible fixed awets ' 157 i 268 1 v 103 - 44
Sale of irvestments . i I : 2 1
Sale ot engine overhaul business ‘ : i 274 ;
fincrease} fdecrease m shoct-term bank deposits i
with 4 matunity date at inception of more than - . ) '
three months ' - Vo 13411 34, {324,
Net cash outflow from invesung activities {213) 1377 {3584 1690 {622)
Net cash {outflow)/inflow before finanmmnyg 283 {3t 54 1268 (135)
FINANCING
Changes 1n borrowings P marm iy e = s e e -
Bank: and other foans nused T 546 wn 4 210
Bastk and other loans repaid 1966) 13 95;5 ' 215 130ty (123)
Capital elements of fisance Teases and hure purchase A : ‘
arrangemients paid 198} 49 155, . /] {116)
R N . . .
{15t um 1201 145 29
Changes 10 share capitn . .
lisute of ordusary share capsal : . 2 ! 54
Share premsiuem recrived e I ’ 2n 413
H i 21 477
. ’ .
Convrrtible Capatal Bonds sued 0! j -
Cass mocuned with Comeertible Capatal ' i ‘ |
Bonds mue . 1l l .
in
Net cath miow. fomfiow) from finetcmg i e mHy 17K i
Facrease /(decremse) #= radand cart cquinvaderns 245 208 " T M3

B4 Beiwh Awuy M Ammel Rapart 5 Awivcr 1997 94
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OPERATING STATISTICS
b e W e vt 1t Sk Sy

SCHEDULED SERVICES 14w Iveg twwy oy ™
Truffic and capanty
Revonue passenger km (RPK1 m 61,915 64,734 A5 8% ¥ uvs 81,907
Avalable seat km {ASK) m 36,601 92.39¢ 918" 14,50 116,974
Passenger load factor Ye “15 "0 1 w2 0R 70,0
Cargo wnne km (C TK) L] 2,400 2,463 2,510 2,691 2,991
Total revenue toane km {RTK) ] 8.290 .04l 8,778 973 10,792
Total mailable tonne km {ATK) " 2,015 12,929 13379 14,695 16,240
Overall load factor Y 689 6.8 65 4 66 2 66.5
Passengers carried oou 23,631 24,243 23,748 25,905 28,656
Tonnes of cargo carred non 198 S06 fa2 332 607
Financiai
Passenger revenue per RPK » 637 6.27 & 50 613 6.32
Cargo revenue per CTK P le.21 1327 1578 14.72 18,41
Average tuel prive (US cents!US gallon} 69.72 89.72 70.94 6% 32 63.64
Qpemtiony
Unduplicated route km oog 685 665 384 oy 543
Punctuality — within 15 minutes %% 72 z g 81 BS
Regularity % 989 98.7 99.2 99,3 99.3
L

TOTAL GROUP OPERATIONS

Total revenue 1onne km (RTK) " 8,627 5,979 9,111 10,71 11,336
Total available tonme km {ATK) " 12,445 13,351 13818 15,424 16,953
Passengers carried 000 25,238 25,587 25,422 28,100 30,595
Average number of employees 52,054 54,427 50,409 48,950 49,628
. RTX per employce e 1657 165.0 807 210.4 228.4
; ATK per employee 000 2391 2433 2% 1 $15.0 340.8
Aircraft in service at year end 224 230 230 241 253
Awrerait utilisation
(average hours per aircraft per annu 2,787 2,663 2,708 2,928 3,051
Revenue aircraft km m 373 389 3o 431 476
Revenue flights 000 274 271 201 268 291
Totad traffic revenue per RTK P 31.36 50.34 32.55 49.28 51.03
Total traffic revenue per ATK P 25.60 13,99 34.65 32 9% 34.20
Net operating expenditure per ATK » 32,50 3474 4216 30.94 32y
Break-even overall Jesd factor * £33 64.8 2 4 628 61.3

Operating statrtreg & =~ «wsbyde thos of asncuted undertakungs and stanchisers (CayFhver Expros and Maersk Am)
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AIRCRAFT FLEET

Nacanber st sovn wade § svusg iopaneey o 31 Sdaowk T8

Chomed. fina ¢ branad th 19t wf
ond oo e punchase  exwndable 1 b oo - E Sounge
AN PUAY  peraiing Frvivoe Lo B ¥ -
e 1, e Tors il dvleerse 1 Jpmens Bern e g o

Concorde 7 7 b0 85 Y4k 173
Boging 747- 10 oo 2y 14 H 15 LU T T nwv
Bucing 747-2t0) 13 k] 16 bY Iy 431 135
Bocing 747-41)) iNote 3 15 il 2 28 M I 1323 5057 a2
Doting 777 15 15
Lockheed TriStar 1 and 100 3 5 L4347 18T 191
McDaonnell Douglas DC-10-30 3 2 7 7186 4, 30H 157
Baemg 767-200 Now 41 3 3 BT FoM L
Boemg 767-300 {Note 51 16 7 23 5 2 bAsMG 3wl 2
Boeing 757-200 Note 61 38 2 43 ! 1,103 254u 7 e
Aarbus A320 10 10 23924 293 51
Bocing 737-204} iNow Ty 21 té 37 8712 200N Ny
Boeing 737-. 30 790 L6029
Boeing 737-4460 2t 4 12 36 YN 275 24
BAC 1-11-560 1285 1L1W
BAc ATP 13 1 14 G 24074 1A L3
de Hawilland Canada
DHC-7-100 INale $) 4 1 5 6,298 LREL AT
de Havilland Cunada
DEHC-8-100 Now B i) 2 TR £ 1
de Havilland Canada
DHC-8-300 {Noke 5} 2 2 A2 a2 2
Hired aircratr 2,054
Total 170 24 25% 56 38 748,803 3,081 £.1
Notes.

1 Excludes ten TriStars, ane IXC-10-30 and ane DHC.-7 stood down {efwhich two TriStur have peen sub-Jeased)
Three Boeing 237-400s delivered dueing the year have yet to enter service {of whach one has beett sub-Jenaed

2. One aireraft was sold and leased bock durmg the year,

4 One aircraft dtivered at the end of law year entered service, two sireraft acquuned o0 hire puechase were delvered dursy the
year 2nd notice 1o terminate twr exuendible operatng leses were mven w Februa: . 1994,

4 These three airevaft entered swrnce on wet leace from USAsr,

5.Theee awcraft aequired on b purchase were delivered during the vear and four arctalt previvsy o metendible operstrg
I sz are pow ownud

& Ot e aremaft sequared wa lare purchaze was deliwered daring e year.
7 Excludes four anerafs sub<teased to GB Anways

8. Brvmon Auwsys aircealt added bo the Beet durmg the year when The Phawoll Line Limted became a wholy - oned
subt dhary undertakang
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SHAREHCLDER INFORMATION

SHAREHOLDERS
Aot 13 May 1994 there were 242,805 sharcholden. An analyss 8 yven pelow
Prienmge o Prarwtage Fyvawioge 8 Frmewiape
Nere of shetrcheliong shurcfiiders of sharrs Clucyfcanen of Wiariekling shareialdere of shaens
1= 1,000 91.52 6,78 Incsviduals LARE] 11.55
1LU0L - 5000 6.75 345 Nowunee compamnes 219 T 74
5001 - 100 093 1.38 Asunance & Insurance compamigs 40 4.99
{0,001 50K 038 227 Banks 1R 0.02
0,001 - 100,000 H13 249 Pension funds a2 056
100,001 - 250,000 012 5.24 lavestment Trusws & Funds 0.24 N,
280,041 - 500,000 008 721 Other corporate holders (0.35 244
5,001 = 750,00 0.03 452
750,06 « 1,000,008 0 298
Over 1,000,000 0.05 $3.28
100,00 100.00 100,00 100.00

The Companies Act 1985 now only rquires 2 general declaration of holdings of wea per cent or mor, ord material
interest of three per cent or more,

Morgan Guaranty Trust Company of New York, the Company’s ADR Depositary, hasa non-beneficsal imerest in
100,38 per cene of the shares in the name of Guaranty Nominees Limsted, Brigish Airways is not aware of any other
\nserest in it shares of ten per cent or more nor of any material interest of three per cent or maore.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

A¢ T1 Manch 1954
Ar TI March | Deinek Awwrpe 55 Brituly Ammawpe {oapteat 2ad

Ondinary Shares Oridinary Sharet Opneng (prswns Convertible

subjoct te subyert 1 Exrtunie and SAYE extmand Clapsid

150 CESLEICTIONE restrctions Share Sehomes dunng your Bonds

31 March $dpnd 31 March 1 Apsi 31 March 1 Apnl 3} Margh { Apatt

1994 993 1994 1583 1994 1993 1994 we

Sir Colin Marshall 38,040 30,432 - - 683,239%% 576,428 - 11,304 11,304
Sir Michael Angus 3,750 3,000 ~ - - - - 1,33 1333
R J Myling 6,503 5,203 - - 349,958+ 237,319 - ~ -
D M Srevens 6,311 5,050 7,705 6,164 412,812+ 384,37} - 109 Hirs 4
Captain CC A Bamnes 12,403 7,983 3,699 4723 72,998% 69,976 - &44 644
A M Davies 5224 5060 - - - - - 2,22t 2,224
Sir Prancis Kenpedy 11,562 5,250 2,325 1,860 -~ 166,666 173,865% 1421 {421
¢ B Mackay - - - - - - - - ~
Baroness O'Cathann 2,500 - n - - - - - -
Hon Chades Price [1* 12,500 10,000 - - - - - « -
Lord White -~ 1,000 - - - - - - -

98,793 72,978 13,729 13,747 1,519,017 1,431,760 173,365 17,031 17,032

* el in Amerwan Depotitary Reteipts,
## Advussted 1o take i accunt the boniss element of the nights e announeed i May 1993

The Directors’ interests sct out above are in each case beneficial. During the yesr, Sir Colin Marshall, R J Ayling snd
D M Stevens were granted 81,911, 102,389 and 13,65) executive share options respectively. The ophons undet the
Executve Share Option Scheme are at prices varying fom 192p 1o 293p per share and sre exerviable up to 9 June
2003. No Director has any beneficial interest in shares 1 anry subsidzey undertakeng of the Comspany othes tha those
shown above in the 9.75 per cent Converuble Capital Bonds 2005 of Britush Airways Capreal Lamited, There have been
no changes in the interests sct out above between the end of the financial year and 23 May 1994

Lord White, 2 Director of the Company il 13 July 1993, held 1,000 osdinary shares in the Cangpery ot 1 Apell 1993
and 1,250 ordinary shares at the date of his reprement from the Bogrd,
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GENERAL INFORMATION

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

Financial year end I March 1994

Annual generzl meetng 12 July 1994

ANNOUNCEMENT OF 1994-95 RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

First quarter resules 0o 30 June 1994 Augver 19

Second guarter results to 30 Seprember 1994 Noverber 1994

Interim dividend Noveinber 1994 (papable Jorary 1995)
Thurd quarter results to 31 December 1994 Febryary 1995

Preliminary announcement mid May 1995

Reporcand Accounts June 1995

Final dividend May 1995 (payalle July 1995)

REGISTERED OFFICE
Speedbird House, Heathrow Airport (London), Hounstow TW6 2]A

Registered number ~ 1777777

OUTSIDE ADVISERS
Company Registrars: Barclays Registrars, PO Box 34, Northwich, Cheshire CW9 7RI
ADR Depositary: Morgan Guazanty Trust Company of New York, 60 Wall Street, New York, NY 10261}

UNSOLICITED MAIL

British Airways is obliged by law to make its share register availible on request to other orgamsations who may then
use it as a mailing list. This may result in: your recciving unsohated mail. [f you wish to lumue the receipt of vnsalicited
mail you may do so by writing to the Mailing Preference Service, an indepeadent organuion whose services are frve
to you. Once your name and address have been added to its records, 1t will advise the compames and otler bodies
which support the service that you no longer wish to receive unsolicited mail,

if you would like more details please wrice 0 The Mailing Preference Service, FREEPOST 22, Londen WL 7EZ.
British Airways azks organisations which obtain 1ts register to support this scrvice,

GLOSSARY

Available seat kilonietres (ASK) The number of seats awailable for sale multipliad by the distarse floum.

Awvailable tonne kilometres (ATK)  The number of tonnet (2,204 ib} of eapacity available for ihe carrage of revenue oad
(passenger and cargo) multiplied by the distance flovm,

Revenue passenger kilometres (RPK) The mumbrer of revenue passengers carvied mltiplied by the distance flovas.
Cargo tonne kilometres (CTK) The number of rovenue toines of corge (froight and iail) cemad exckiipliod by she distesee founs
Revenue tonne kilometres (RTK)  The revenie foad in tonmes multiplied by the ditaner flows.

Load factor The perecntage relationship of revenne load carvied to atpatsty avalleble,
Passenger Joad factor RPK expressed as o peneritage of ASK,

Overall load faczor RTK expressed as o percentage of ATK.

Break-even load factor The boad factor required to oquate tatal truffic reverste with apmsing enste
Revemie per RPK Pussenger revenue from scheduled opertions divided by ssoduited RPK,

Total waffic veventie per RTK Revenuie from totel trafflc brohodutied and non-schadvilody diwided by RTK.
Total teaffic vovenue por ATK Revorne from tetal trgffic fheduled and meti-solontbilodd doided by ATH

Puncrusliry The indurtry’s sandund meassirod as the pewewage of Bighss deuriiogy voiiioior 1% somaine
af sthedicla.

Regularity The peronsage of fighte vomplased o fighie shwishod, ndnilivg fighits aumetiod Jor
wmiteroial rodtbens,

Uniduplicaved reute kilothetres All salvedinlod Jigfot shegon eonirised vrvse, reperitiess f Fonsscruy o disrasivrs

48 Mtk Mrye P At Repert & Asownite $953.99



